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Accordia Golf Trust

Accordia Golf Trust Management Pte. Ltd.

068898 #22-03A 80
C/0 80 Robinson Road, #22-03A Singapore 068898

03 6212 8316

SGD OANDA Corporation
2018 31 SGD 81.02

31
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" e, 2017 o 2017 e
) C | ®
1 cc 7,980 27 1970 1,304 86.3 | 92,459
2 cc 6,650 18 1981 1,101 110.0 | 79,434
3 c« 4,610 43 1963 1,188 87.1 | 144,369
4 cc 3,770 27 1979 1,051 88.6 | 96,483
5 cc 3,660 27 1962 886 85.1 | 91,690
6 GC 2,900 18 1973 655 85.5 | 62,063
7 cc 2,810 18 1978 652 80.2 | 56,602
8 6C 2,760 36 1974 977 74.9 | 107,573
9 6C 2,730 36 1968 710 68.9 | 98,136
10 6C 2,670 18 1997 650 81.6 | 58,617
11 6C 2,450 36 1966 821 68.5 | 97,591
12 cc 2,440 18 1982 573 81.5 | 58,039
13 GC 2,040 18 1984 548 81.7 | 59,284
14 GC 2,030 27 1972 600 80.3 | 85,983
15 cc 1,980 18 1990 631 82.9 | 59,198
16 cc 1,920 18 1973 601 75.0 | 53,837
17 cc 1,840 27 1974 605 72.9 | 78,503
18 cc 1,600 18 1994 547 79.0 | 56,417
19 cc® 1,460 18 1989 609 78.8 55,973
20 cc 1,400 18 1988 524 83.9 | 59,397
21 | e (S)C 1,390 18 1979 477 80.4 | 57,228
22 cc 1,380 18 1975 490 80.1 | 57,172
23 cc 1,350 18 1991 469 77.7 | 56,578
24 cc® 1,270 18 1986 968 74.6 52,813
25 6C 1,120 18 1990 537 84.3 | 59,866
26 cc 1,070 18 1992 520 87.3 | 62,823
27 cc 1,050 18 1990 512 86.3 | 60,898
28 cc 1,020 27 1975 511 65.1 | 69,889
29 cc 941 18 1988 546 84.5 | 60,330
30 cc 694 18 1975 346 72.5 | 50,203
31 cc® 677 18 1970 592 82.4 | 59,645
32 ® « 418 27 1976 397 64.8 | 53,451
33 cc® 346 27 1987 520 63.0 67,864
34 c 184 18 1978 236 70.5 | 39,488
35 | 6 81 18 1978 278 62.6 | 44,191
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1 cc™® 7,410 45 1969 1,636 86.9 | 157,773
2 cc 4,640 27 1972 1,042 94.2 | 102,544
3 cc 4,480 27 1968 1,028 92.9 | 101,204
4 cc 4,310 36 1974 1,118 89.0 | 129,577
5 6C 3,180 27 1960 824 80.4 | 87,276
6 6C 2,090 18 1988 700 90.0 | 64,996
7 cc 1,950 18 1965 572 88.0 | 64,258
8 6C 1,900 18 1998 512 81.5 | 56,552
9 @ 1,770 45 1993 1,538 81.3 | 147,647
10 GC 1,360 18 1996 440 78.5 | 53,394
1 6C 1,270 18 1974 504 83.7 | 59,408
12 cc 1,210 18 1970 578 93.6 | 67,375
13 cc 771 18 2001 543 85.7 | 62,068
14 cc 578 18 1987 430 78.7 | 57,145
15 GC 478 18 1996 490 83.5 | 60,654
. o) 2017 . 2017 2017
) ( ) ®)
1 6C 2,550 18 1988 706 81.5 | 58,698
2 cc 2,100 18 1990 665 85.1 | 60,923
3 GC 2,020 27 1993 715 71.4 | 74,283
4 cc 1,960 18 1993 658 80.8 | 58,855
5 GC 1,370 18 1992 495 77.3 | 56,000
6 | @ e 1,370 18 1987 540 86.4 | 62,188
7 GC 1,270 18 1991 462 72.1 | 52,201
8 GC 1,260 18 1994 538 79.4 | 55,138
9 GC 1,250 18 1996 409 73.9 | 52,632
10 6C 1,020 18 1992 535 86.9 | 62,949
u 256C 929 18 1995 485 75.8 | 53,694
12 6C 705 18 1984 390 70.5 | 51,087
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1 cc 3,040 18 1988 686 86.2 | 62,555
2 ® 2,120 18 1969 637 84.9 | 61,830
3 cc 1,730 18 1973 477 69.5 | 46,116
4 cc 1,580 18 1974 533 82.5 | 59,863
5 6C 1,110 36 1980 648 62.6 | 88,646
6 cc 1,050 18 1977 408 66.2 | 47,895
7 cc 1,000 18 1989 439 79.3 | 56,955
8 ce 882 18 1974 316 69.3 | 40,313
9 ce 870 18 1976 380 70.9 | 51,296
10 6C 834 27 1974 an 64.8 | 68,655
1 GC 781 18 1975 480 83.7 | 57,566
12 6C 720 18 1998 317 85.0 | 55,574
13 cc 615 18 1994 371 63.3 | 45,324
14 ce 541 18 1961 296 65.8 | 47,240
15 ce 499 18 1994 365 65.1 | 46,746
16 6C 484 18 1991 454 72.4 | 52,152
17 cc 459 18 1976 328 68.3 | 47,673
18 cc 450 18 1976 240 64.4 | 30,669
19 cc 425 18 1979 313 66.5 | 45,873
20 6C 404 27 1975 278 54.5 | 37,267
21 ce 341 18 1967 264 56.4 | 38,668
22 cc 341 27 1963 361 53.9 | 38,780
23 o 324 18 1992 245 65.7 | 47,140
24 6C 308 18 1992 408 69.4 | 38,882
25 ce 266 18 1985 208 62.5 | 27,986
26 cc 111 18 1991 311 59.0 | 42,032
27 cc 60 18 1993 294 69.1 | 36,898
(1; 2017 12 31
@
J-GAAP 2017 2017 2018 31

® 10
@ 21 18 2
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4
Khoo Kee Cheok 2014 3 20 2014 6 16
Khoo 1980 DBS 16 28
The Bank of East Asia
Association of Banks in Singapore Summit Securities Pte.
Ltd.
Khoo 1971 1972
2014 6 16
1984 Nitto America Co.,
Ltd.
10
2009
1982
2016 9 27 2016 11 11
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2018 8 1
30

3 REIT 2 REIT
5 REIT

1985

21/318



EDINETOOOO
Oo0ooooooooobo0oDo0obDo0ooDo0oooo0o0bDo0g0oOoo(Ese783)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 8 1
IR
1984
Chong Teck Sin 2014 6 16
Chong AVIC International Maritime Holdings Ltd Civmec
Ltd InnoTek Ltd Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd

Beyonics Technology Limited Wanxiang International Limited
Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. JES International Holdings Limited Midsouth Holdings

Ltd. Blackgold International Holdings Limited
Chong 2004 2010 ACRA
Seksun Corporation Ltd Glaxo Wellcome Asia Pacific

China-Singapore Suzhou Industrial Park Development Co., Ltd.

Chong 1981 1987
2014 6 16
KPMG
2006 FAS
1993
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2018
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36B
300,000
75%
50%
17%
75%
50%
2020
2013 2018
CITR Corporate Income tax Rebate
30 30,000
50 2016
25,000
40 15,000

CITR 2019
20% 10,000
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AG
TK
AG TK

TK

10 25

AG AG TK

TK
TK
17% AG
TK

AG
AG

AG
TK

TK AG
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AG
AG 13 1 zg
AG
AG
34A
39
FRS39
FRS39 FRS39
FRS39
2018 1 1 FRS39 FRS109
IRAS 2017 11 22 FRS109
FRS39
FRS109
GST
AG
12 1
12 GST AG
AG
AG GST GST
IRAS GST

GST
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2018 31
SGD
931,216,112.99 97.01
28,735,384.74 2.99
959,951,497.73 100.00
77,775
AG
2018 31
I
SGD SGD
931,216,112.99 | 931,216,112.99 | 931,216,112.99 | 931,216,112.99 | 97.01

2018

2018

31

31
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(SGD) ( ) (SGD) ( )| (SGD) ) (SGD) )

(2015 31y |943.867,307.71| 76,472 |881,107,441.51| 71,387 | 0.86 70| 0.80 65
(2016 31 ) |962:474,119.54| 77,980 (889,602,330.94| 72,076 | 0.8 71| o.81 66
(2017 31 ) [986.704,539.87| 79,043 920,317,571.06 74,564 | 0.90 73| 0.84 68
930,079,394.07| 75,355 [911,943,881.07| 73,886 | 0.85 69| 0.83 67

(2017 30 )
(018 a1 ) [959-951,497.73| 77,775 |917,635,300.73| 74,347 [ 0.87 70| 0.83 67

2014
2017 2018
(SGD) (SGD) (SGD) (SGD) ()
2017 0.75 0.72 0.73 0.75 1,303,621
0.78 0.73 0.76 0.74 1,849,214
0.75 0.67 0.71 0.72 2,683,224
0.74 0.69 0.71 0.71 1,409,014
0.72 0.70 0.71 0.71 1,173,027
0.74 0.70 0.72 0.73 1,903,870
10 0.76 0.73 0.75 0.75 1,337,095
11 0.78 0.68 0.73 0.69 2,390,573
12 0.70 0.67 0.68 0.69 1,327,441
2018 0.71 0.68 0.70 0.70 753,200
0.70 0.63 0.66 0.65 940,284
0.69 0.63 0.66 0.65 1,419,514
0.65 0.62 0.64 0.62 532,490
0.64 0.58 0.62 0.61 897,243
0.63 0.59 0.61 0.62 1,047,280
AG
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(seD) 1 ( ) (D) 1 ()

2014 6 2018 1y 62,759,866.20 5,085 0.0571 4.63
2015 2016 3 ) 72,872,788.60 5,904 0.0663 5.37
2016 2017 1y 66,386,968.80 5,379 0.0604 4.89

(2 42,316,197.00 3,428 0.0385 3.12
(2017 2018 31 ) ,316,197. : : :
1 AG
2 2018 6 21 0.0220 24,180,684
(2014 16 2015 31 ) 11.64
(2015 2016 31 ) 9.54
(2016 2017 31 ) 11.16
(2017 2018 31 ) 3.39%

100x (a b) b
0.97 )
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1,099,122,000

1,099,122,000
(2014 16 2015 31 ) (963,823, 000)
(2015 2016 31 ) () 1,099,122,000
(2016 2017 31 ) 1,099,122,000

Q)
(2017 2018 31 ) ) 1,099,122,000
AG
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CDP CDP

CDP

CDP CDP
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AG

AG
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AG
AG
AG

AG
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AG AG
CDP

83/318



EDINETOOOO
Oo0ooooooooobo0oDo0obDo0ooDo0oooo0o0bDo0g0oOoo(Ese783)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CDP
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CDP

AG
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AG
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10.00 AG

5%

SGXNET
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@
2018 31
AGT AGT
2018 2017 2018 2017
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
8,145 10,252 116 58
2,596 2,407 2,946 4,482
281 256 — —
1,207 1,206 16 1
12,229 14,121 3,078 4,541
— — 75,447 75,447
10 146,033 146,536 — —
11 17,245 17,131 — —
445 584 — —
163,723 164,251 75,447 75,447
175,952 178,372 78,525 79,988
12 28,847 14,830 — —
13 983 659 — —
14 5,441 5,621 148 166
15 10,521 11,215 — —
602 915 602 915
17 18 12 — —
16 4,135 4,350 — —
50,547 37,602 750 1,081
12 14,108 28,299 — —
13 3,044 2,219 — —
() 500 500 — —
15 31 821 — —
23(c) 27,427 28,068 — —
17 60 189 — —
16 80 78 — —
45,250 60,174 — —
95,797 97,776 750 1,081
80,155 80,596 77,775 78,907
18 81,086 81,086 81,486 81,486
(78) (201) — —
(1,206) (605) (3,711) (2,579)
79,802 80,280 77,775 78,907
353 316 — —
80,155 80,596 77,775 78,907
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)
2018 31
AGT
2018 2017
( ) ( )
20 50,860 51,533
590 386
51,450 51,919
(16,367) (16,373)
(3,560) (3.704)
(5.823) (5.915)
(2,558) (2.497)
(99) (100)
(254) (253)
(3,168) (3,259)
27 (1,995) (2,022)
(2,182) (2.118)
21 (5,242) (5.219)
(1,720) (1,499)
2,411) (2,388)
(45,379) (45,347)
6,071 6,572
22 (1,603) (1,658)
4,468 4,914
23 (336) (801)
24 4,132 4,113
( )

17 123 197
( ) 123 197
4,255 4,310
4,095 4,000
37 113
4,132 4,113
4,218 4,197
37 113
4,255 4,310

() 25 3.73 3.64
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2018 31
( )
) ( ) ( ) ) ) ( )
AGT
2017 81,086 (201) (605) 80,280 316 80,596
— — 4,095 4,095 37 4,132
17 — 123 — 123 — 123
— 123 4,095 4,218 37 4,255
28 — — (4,696) (4,696) — (4,696)
_ — (4,696) (4,696) — (4,696)
2018 31 81,086 (78) (1,206) 79,802 353 80,155
2016 81,086 (398) 1,226 81,914 203 82,117
— — 4,000 4,000 113 4,113
17 — 197 — 197 — 197
— 197 4,000 4,197 113 4,310
28 — — (5,831) (5,831) — (5,831)
— — (5,831) (5,831) — (5,831)
2017 31 81,086 (201) (605) 80,280 316 80,596
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2018 31
AGT
2018 2017
( ) ( )
4,132 4,113
3,168 3,259
1,720 1,499
1,603 1,658
@ @
336 801
25 15
104 141
(26) (23)
11,061 11,461
215 (163)
(25) 11
(682) (289)
10,569 10,998
(915) (951)
(1,290) (1,457)
8,364 8,590
(2,230) (1,660)
) 4 2
(114) (€))
(2,340) (1,659)
(450) (450)
(384) —
(1,937) (1,003)
(664) (632)
— 438
(4,696) (5,831)
(8,131) (7,478)
(2,107) (547)
10,203 10,751
— @

8,096 10,203
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2018 31
2017 2018 3 31
43,129 (1,152) — 318 660 42,955
2,878 1,063 — 86 — 4,027
12,036 (1,937) 435 18 — 10,552
AGT 4,453 (2017 - 2,638 )
1,841 (2017 1982 ) 410 (2017 1209
) 2017 31 209
AGT ( ) 36 (017  :12
) 32 (2017 :10 )
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2018 31
( AGT ) 2014 16
(BTA) 31
80 #22-03A 068898(80 Robinson
Road, #22-03A, Singapore 068898) AGT
AGT (
)
( ) 49 ( ™
) 51 ™ 100
™
AGT (SGX-ST) 2014 ( )
AGT
( )
( SPC
) SPC ( )
AGT AGT
AGT
AGT 98.99 ( 19
) 0.01
AGT
AGT AGT AGT

AGT AGT ( AGT )
2018 31 AGT AGT 2018

25
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2018 31
@
( IFRS )

IFRS AGT
AGT 38,318 2018

28,847

AGT
2018
1
AGT
AGT 12
2017
2017 AGT IFRS
INT IFRS AGT IFRS INT

IFRS

IFRS INT IFRS AGT AGT
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2018 31

@ « )
1AS

1AS

AGT

®)

AGT AGT ( )
AGT

AGT

AGT
AGT
AGT AGT

AGT
AGT

AGT

AGT
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2018 31
C )
) C )
AGT AGT
AGT AGT
AGT
AGT AGT
AGT
AGT AGT
AGT
AGT )
) ( )
AGT
( IFRS
)
IAS 39

AGT
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2018 31

©

AGT

FVTPL
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2018 31

© « )

AGT

AGT

AGT

AGT AGT
AGT
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2018 31
« )

© « )

AGT

AGT
( )
AGT

AGT AGT
@

AGT

17

12
12
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2018 31

©

AGT AGT

AGT

AGT

17

AGT
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2018 31
C )
Q)
AGT
AGT
AGT (
m )
@
o

AGT

AGT
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2018 31

Q) « )

56
25

@™

AGT
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2018 31
« )
@
@«
AGT
( )
AGT
( )
( )
( )
( )

( )

m

AGT ( ) AGT
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2018 31

(m

Q)

©

®

@

AGT
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2018 31

@ « )

AGT

AGT

AGT
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2018 31
« )
Q)
AGT (
) AGT
( )
®
@®
(D)
AGT
AGT
AGT 98.99
AGT 20.42

AGT
AGT
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2018 31
« )
O) « )
AGT 2014 1 2015 31 100.0
90.0
€))
2018 31 10 146,033 (2017
146,536 )
AGT
AGT 69.0%(2017  :69.0%) 31.0%(2017  :31.0%)
20
AGT
®)
10
AGT 1,720

(2017 :1,499 )

109/318



2018

©

@

31

2014
SPC
58,146

SPC
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)
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2018 31
@
AGT AGT
2018 2017 2018 2017
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
8,145 10,252 116 58
2,596 2,407 2,946 4,482
7 71 — —
10,812 12,730 3,062 4,540
10,812 12,730 3,062 4,540
42,955 43,129 — _
10,552 12,036 — —
4,164 4,294 148 166
4,027 2,878 — —
500 500 — —
527 521 — —
62,725 63,358 148 166
78 201 — —
62,803 63,559 148 166
®
AGT
AGT
AGT

AGT
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« )
(
AGT
AGT AGT
AGT
AGT
2018 31 448
480
AGT
2018 2017
( ) ( )
2,596 1,422
— 985
2,596 2,407
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2018 31
C )
®) C )
) C )
AGT
AGT
)
AGT
AGT
( ) ( ) ( )
AGT
2018
3.12 29,513 14,414 —
3.00 15 60 425
2.49 1,051 2,693 482
— 4,164 — —
0.16 10,539 31 —
— 522 — 5

45,804 17,198 912
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2018 31
C )
® « )
) C )
AGT
2017
3.08 15,516 29,398 —
3.00 15 60 719
3.13 724 1,895 441
— 4,294 — —
0.48 11,238 823 —
— 516 — 5
32,303 32,176 1,165
2018 2017 31 AGT
AGT
2018 3 31 1
2 5
( ) ( )
AGT
2018
18 60
AGT
2017
12 189
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2018 31
C )
) C )
) C )
2018 31 AGT 38,318 2017 23,481
() 2,584 2017 2,769 ):
AGT
() 10,521 2016 11,215
AGT
() 28,847 2016 14,830
2018
SPC (1)
(i)
AGT
( 2@)
12
AGT
AGT
1,965 12
)
AGT AGT
AGT
AGT
AGT ( )

17
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2018 31
« )
®) « )
) (
AGT
AGT AGT
)
AGT
)
2018 2017
( ) ( )
18 12
60 189
( (
) )
AGT
AGT AGT

AGT 2017
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2018 31
C )
® « )
) C )
AGT
AGT AGT
AGT 2018 2017
31
AGT
2018 2017
( ) ( )

58,034 58,543

(8,145) (10,252)

49,889 48,291

80,155 80,596
0.72 0.73
0.62 0.60

)
50 2014 20
49.0 ™
51.0
AGT
AGT
AGT
(
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2018 31
C )
) C )
AGT
AGT
2018 2017
( ) ( )
254 253
— 8
) ( )
AGT
AGT
2018 2017
( ) ( )
(C )
2 5,823 5,915
1,715 1,712
«C 27 38 78
1,259 1,210
65 70
465 315
3¢ 2 15 15
(GST ) 338 433
« 22 26 43
SPC (€)) 64
SPC (¢D)) 19)
4 (399) (480)
26 38
( ) 5 (38)
6 (11)
5,558
( )
7 16
(485)
23
6 an
(145)

78
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1
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7
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8
7
SPC
2017 2017 12
AGT
SPC
SPC 3.0
SPC
AGT
SPC
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)
(
SPC
2017
2018
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( ) C )
AGT AGT
2018 2018
( ) ( )
1,932 2,384
102 140
6N (73)
5,613
148
18
©)
(62) 39
(22) (23)
2018
500
AGT
AGT
AGT

2017 SPC

(2017
) SPC
SPC
SPC
2018
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2018 31
C )
) ( ™
)
AGT ™
AGT
2018 2017
( ( )
(C ™ )
9 100 100
SPC
AGT AGT
2018 2017 2018 2017
( ) ) ( ) ( )
858 514 — —
7,238 9,689 116 58
8,096 10,203 116 58
49 49 — —
8,145 10,252 116 58
2018 31 49 (2017 149
AGT SPC 12
AGT
AGT AGT
2018 2017 2018 2017
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
3,044 2,887 — _
(448) (480) — —
2,596 2,407 — —
_ — 2,946 4,482
2,596 2,407 2,946 4,482
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2018 31
AGT
2018 2017
( ) ( )
480 502
104 141
(136) (163)
448 480
AGT AGT
2018 2017 2018 2017
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
1,190 1,204 1 1
17 2 15 —
1,207 1,206 16 1
309 308 — —
67 207 — —
65 65 — —
4 4 — —
445 584 — —
AGT
2018 2017
( ) ( )
75,447 76,200
— (753)
75,447 75,447
2018 31 AGT
2018 2017
98.99 98.99
(SPC)
AGT  SPC ( ) SPC SPC
AGT SPC AGT SPC
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2018 31
10
AGT
) ) ( ) ) ( )
2016 122,173 26,448 5,740 154 154,515
78 945 1,339 276 2,638
— 397 — (397) _
17 (31) (169) — 217)
2017 31 122,234 27,759 6,910 33 156,936
10 1,852 2,557 5 4,424
— 19 10 (29) —
— (28) (302) (4) (334)
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ACCORD|A GOLF TRUST ANNUAL AEFCAT 2018

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION - GROUP AND AGT

a1 Maech 2018

Group AGT
Note 2018 2017 2018 2017
JPY million JPY million  JPY million  JPY milllon

Current assets
Cash and bank balances B 8,145 10,252 116 S8
Irade and other receivables T 2,596 2,407 2,946 4 487
Inventoras 281 256 - -
Cther assets B 1.207 1,206 16 1

12,229 14,121 3,078 4,541
Nen-current assets
Investment in subsiciary 9 = 75,447 75,447
Property, plant and equipment 10 146,033 146,536 - -
Intangible assets 11 17,245 17,131 = -
Other assets 8 445 G534 - -

163,723 164,251 75,447 75,447

Total assets 175,952 178,372 78,525 759,988
Current liabilities
Borrowings from financial institutions 12 28,847 14,830 - -
Finance lease payables 13 583 659 - -
Trade and other payables 14 5441 5621 148 166
Membership daposits 15 10,521 11,215 - -
Income taxes payable G032 915 602 915
Derivative financial instrumenis 17 18 12 - -
Crther Habilities 16 4,135 4,350 - -

50,547 37.602 750 1,081
Non-current liabilities
Borrewings from financial institutions 12 14,108 28,299 = -
Finance lease payables 13 3,044 2,219 - -
Borrowing fram a related party S(ii) 500 500 =
Membership deposits 15 n 821 - -
Deferred tax labilities 23(c) 27,427 28,068 - -
Derivative financial instrumenis 17 60 189 - -
Cther Habilithes 6 B0 18 - -

45,250 60,174 - -
Total liabilities 85,797 47,776 750 1.081
Mot assots  BO0,155 E0,596 _ TRITS 78,907
Equity
Unitholdars” funds 18 1,086 81,036 81,486 81,486
Cash flow hedging neserve {78) {201} - -
Accumulated losses {1.206) {605 (3,711} {2,579)
Equity attributable to Unithaolders 79,802 80,230 77,775 78,907
Non-controlling interest 353 316 - -
Total equity ~ BOA55 80,536 _ ITITS 78,907

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ACCORDIA GOLF TRUST ANNUAL REFDAT 2015

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the financial year ended 31 March 2018

Group
Note 2018 2017
IPY million  JPY million
Revenue 20 50,860 51,533
Other operating income 580 L
Operating income 51450 51,819
Labour and outsourcing expense {16,367) {16,373)
Merchandise and material expense (3.560) (3,704)
Golf course management fee (5.823) (5,915)
Golt course maintenance and repair cost (2.558) (2,497)
Assel manager’s fee (99) (100)
Trustee-Manager's fee {254} {253)
Depreciation and amortisation expense (3.168) (3,259)
Cperating lease expense 27 {1.995) (2,022)
Urtility expense (2.182) (2,118)
Selling, general and administrative expense 21 (5.242) {5,219)
Impairment loss {1,720} {1, 499)
Other operating expenses (2.411) (2,388)
Operating expense (4%5,379) {45,347)
Operating profit 6,071 6,572
Interest expense and other fnance costs 22 (1603}  (1,658)
Profit before income tax 4,468 4914
Income tax expense 23 (336) {801}
Profit for the year 24 4,132 4,113
Other comprehensive incame, net of Income tax
tems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Unrealised gain on change in fair value of cash fiow hedaging financial
instruments 17 123 197
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 123 197
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,255 4,310
Profit for the year attributable to
Unitholdars 4,095 4,000
Hen-controlling interest = 37 113
Ad32 =i
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to
Unitholders 4,218 4,197
Hon-controlling interest 37 113
4,255 4,310
Earnimngs per wnit attributable to Unitholders (IPY) 25 3.73 3.64

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

136/318



EDINETOOOO
Oo0ooooooooobo0oDo0obDo0ooDo0oooo0o0bDo0g0oOoo(Ese783)
OoOooooooooooooooodad

ACCORD|A GOLF TRUST ANNUAL AEFCAT 2018

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the financial year ended 31 Masch 2018

Retained
Ciih Tlow profits! Attributable MNon-
Unithalders hedging  {(Accumulated te wantrolling Tatal
funds PR lasses) unithalders interest equity
IPY millien IPY million IFY milldon JPY milllion JPY millien JPY milllan
Group
Balance as at 1 April 2007 B 085 12013 (BOS) BO. 280 316 B0, 596

Todal comprehensive Income for

the year
Prodit fior the year - = 4,055 4095 37 4.132
Oihes comprehensive Acome 1or

the year (Mate 1T) - 123 - 123 - 123
Tatal - 123 4,095 4,218 7 4,255

Transaction with Unitholders,
recogrised dvsly in sguity

Dixiributinn paid (Nots 281 - - [d 598, {4, A%G) - {4 BSE)
Tatal - - (4,696} {4,626] = {4,696}
Balance ax at 31 March 2018 81,086 (T8) (1,206} 802 353 B, 155
Balance as at 1 April 2016 81,085 1398) 1226 B1,914 203 B2,117
Totad comgrehensive Income for

h i
Prodit for the year 4 000 4 000 113 4113
Drther comprehensive moome for

the year (Mate 17} x 197 = 197 = 197
Tatal 197 4,000 4,197 113 4310

Transaction with Unitholdens
recogniied diectly in equity

Distribution pakd (Note 28) - - (5,831} {5,831) - {5.831)
Total - - _ (583 (s8I - _(sa3n)
Balance as at 31 March 2007 B1.086 12013 B0%) BO.280 316 BO. 538
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ACCORDIA GOLF TRUST ANNUAL REFDAT 2015

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the financial year ended 31 March 2018

Group

2018 2017
IPY million  JPY million
Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year 4,132 4113
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisaton expense 3,168 3,259
Impairment loss 1,720 1,499
Interest expense and other finance costs 1.603 1.658
Interest income [1) (2}
Income tax expense 336 a0
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 25 15
Allowance for doubtful trade recenwvables 104 141
Gain on forfeiture of membership deposits {26) {23)
Operating cash flow before movements in working capital 11,061 11,461
Changes i working capital:
Trade recesvables and others 215 (163)
Inventories {25) {11}
Trade payables and others (682) (289)
Cash generated from operations 10,569 10,998
Interest and other linance cost paid (915) {951}
Income tax paid (1,290) 11,457}
MNet cash flows from operating activities 8,364 8,590
Cash flows from investing activities
Additions of property, plant and equipment (Note A} {2.230) {1,660)
Mroceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment [Note B) i 2
Acguisition of intangible assets (114) (1)
Met cash flows used in investing activities ~(2,340) {1,659)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of barrowings fram financial institutians (450} (a%0)
Payment of borrowing transaction costs (384) -
Repayment of membership deposits {1.937) {1,003)
Repayment of finance lease chligation (664) (632)
Decrease in pledged deposit - 438
Distribution to unitholders {4.696) {5,831}
Net cash flows used in financing activities (8,131) _(7.478)
Het docrease in cash and cash squivalents {2,107} (547
Balance of cash and cash equwalents at the beginning of the financial year
{Note &) 10,203 10,751
Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash held in foreign
CUrtency - (1}
Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year
[Note &) 8,096 10,203
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ACCORD|A GOLF TRUST ANNUAL AEFCAT 2018

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the financial year ended 31 Masch 2018

Reconcillation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Non-tash changes

Principal Transfer
and interest | to other | Interest | Amortisation
1 April 2017 payments payable | expense |of facility fee | 31 March 2018

IPY million | JPY million IPY million IPY million
Bank borrowings 43,129 (1,152) - 318 G6D 42 955
Lease llabilities 2,878 1,063 - B - 4,027
Membership dopasits 12,036 (1,937) 435 18 10,552

Note A

During the current fimancal year, the Group scquired propeny, pdant and equipment with an agEegate ooil of approdimatsly
Y 4453 millian (017 1P 2,638 million), of which Y 1 8410 madlaan (20777 1PY 582 mllina) was acgiired anclar finance lsase

arrangement and IFY 410 meibos (20017 Y 209 million) remains unpaid a5 &t year end. The oubsiandng amount as af 31 March
1017 of IFY 3209 milion had been paid during the cunment financial year

Hote 8:

Durng the cwrent financial year, 1he Group dsposed property, plant and equipment 1o Accondia Golf Cou, Lid (the = Sponsor ) with
wies proceads of IFY 36 milllon (2007 1PY 12 million), of which IFY 32 million (2017 B 10 millon) was offset against finance
lease oblgation 10 the S5ponsor

The accompanying notes farm an integral part of these financial statements.
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ACCORDIA GOLF TRUST ANNUAL REFDAT 2015

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 March 2018

These notes form an integral part of and should be reac in conjunction with the accompanying financial
statements,

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Accordia Golf Trust (*AGT") is 3 businass trust constituted on 16 June 2014 under the laws of the
Republic of Singapore, registered under Chapter 31A of the Business Trusts Act ("BTA"} The acdress of
its principal place of business and ragistered office & 80 Rabinson Road #22-034, Singapore 63898,
The financial statements are expressed in Japanese Yen (“JPY"), the functional currency of AGT, and
raunded to the nearest million,

AGT Is managed by Accordia Golf Trust Management Pte. Ltd. (the ®Trustee-Manager”), The Trusiee-
Manager is 49% held by Accordia Golf Co., Ltd {the "Sponsos™) and 51% held by Daiwa Real Estate
Asset Management Co. Ltd. {the “TM Partner ™), & wholly-owned subsidiary of Daiwa Securities Group
Ing, Thie TM Partner (5 also the asset manager of the initial portfolio, comprising golf courses and golf
course refated assets.

AGT was admitted to the Main Board of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited {*SGX-5T")
and was listed on the SGX-5T on 1 August 2014 (“Listing Date")

AGT is established with the principal imestment strateqy of investing, diractly or indirectly, in the business
of cwning a partfolio of stabilised, income-generating golf courses, driving ranges, and galf course
related assets worldwide with an initial focus on lapan

The Trustee-Manager has acquired the golf courses and golf course related assets which are owned by
& special purpose vehicle {the "Initial Porifolle®) through the acquisition of Tekumel Kumial interest
{the “TK Interest™} from the Sponsor on the Listing Date. The special purpose wehicle is established
in the form of a Japanese limited labllity company known as Godo Kalsha (the =SPC®, “GK®, or "TK
Operator™), All of its membership interests (i.e. voting rights, namely “GK Interest”) in the SPC are held
by a general incorporated association known as an Ippan Shadan Hajin (“15H), a type of special purpose
wehicle under lapanese law. The voting rights of the I5H are held by certified public accountants who
are members of the Toxyo Kyodo Accounting Office. The certified public accountants are independent
and not subject 1o the instruction of any parly. The role of the cerlified public accountants is to carry
out limited corporate administrative work to maintain such function of tha i5H.

The relationship between AGT and the TK Operator is governed by the Tokumel Kumiai
Agreement ("TE Agreement”) AGT, as the investor, will provide funds to the TK Operatar in
return for the right 1o receive distribution of profit gererated from the operation of the GK. Linder
the T Agreement, the net Income of the TE business, comprising principally the income generated
from the golf course business, will be passed up to AGT, AGT & entitled to 98.99% of the profits
and losses of such business, while the shareholder of the TE Operator and QI fas disclosed in
Note 19) are entitlied to 1% and 0.01% of the aliocated profits and losses respectively, AGT is, therefore,
entitled 1o receive substantiafly all of the economic interest fram the TR Operator.

The Trustea-Manages has assessed the economic reality of AGT and its investment activities through the
TE Operator and concleded that AGT has the ability to wse its power 10 affect its refurns from the TE
Diparater pursiant to the TE Agreement. Accardingly, the TK Operatlor & considerad as a subsidiary. The
consolidated financial statements of AGT and its subsidiary are presented by consolidating AGT and the
TE Dpeiator (together referred to as the "Group").

The censclidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position of AGT for

the financial year ended 31 March 2018 were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the
Trustee-Manager on 25 June 2018
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ACCORD|A GOLF TRUST ANNUAL AEFCAT 2018

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 Masch 2018

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{a}  Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intarrational Financial Reparting
Standards (*IFRS") under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the accounting
poticies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the Trustes-Manager 1o
exercise 115 judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting palicies. It also requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3

Going concermn

The Group & in a net current liabilities position of Y 38,318 milllan, which includes bank
borrowings amounting to JIPY 28,847 million that are repayable in August 2018, The financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as the directors expect that the Group
will be able 1o meet its liabilities as and when they fall due on the following basis:

- The Trustee-Manager has been in negotiations with the respective financial institutions for
the refinancing of bank borrowings due in Aubgust 2018, As at the date of this repart, draft
term sheets have been provided by the financial institutions, The directors expect that the
borrowings will be successfully refinanced and the refinancing agreements will be signed
one week before the actual matunty dates

- In the past years, the Group has not had any breaches in its debt covenants, and that it
has been successful in refinancing its bank borrowings as they come due.

. Based on the Group's forecasted cash flows, it has adequate cash inflow from its
operations to settle its expected operating cash outflows and interest expenses in the next
twelve months.

Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2017

On 1 Apnil 2017, the Group adopted the new of amended IFRS and Interpretations of IFRS (TINT
IFRS"} that are mandatory for application for the financial year. Changes to the Group's accounting
poicies have been made as reguired, in accordance with relevant transitional provisions in the
respective [FRS and INT IFRS

The adoption of these new orf amended IFRS and INT IFRS did not result in substantial changes to

the accounting palicies of the Group and AGT and had no material effect an the amaunts reparted
for the current o prior financial years except for the following:
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ACCORDIA GOLF TRUST ANNUAL REFDAT 2015

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 March 2018

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
fa) Basis of preparation (continued)
1AS 7 Statement of cash flows

The amendments to IAS 7 Statement of cash flows (Disclosure initiative) sets out required
dischosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flews and non-cash changes.

The Group has included the additional required disclosures in the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows 1o the Financial Statements

(b} Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporates the financial information of AGT and entity
(including structured entity) controlled by AGT and its subsidiary. Control is achigved when AGT:

- has power over the investee;
- & exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its myalvement with the investee; and
- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns,

AGT reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if the facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to ore or more of the three elements of contral listed above

When AGT has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the woting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investes unilaterally. AGT considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not AGT's voting rights in an invesiee are sufflicient to give it power, including:

- the size of AGT's holding of voling nghis relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

- potential voting rights held by AGT, other vate halders or other parties;

- rights arsing from other contractual arrangements; and

- any additional factls and circumstances that indcate that AGT has, or does nol have, the
current ability 1o direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions nesd 1o be made,
mncluding voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings

The TE Operator is principally engaged in the imvestment holding of TK business. Under the
TE Agreemenf, AGT primarily has power over the TK Operator, has rights to variable return in the
TK business and has ability 1o use its power to affect its return in the TE business and, accordingly,
consalidates their financial information for reparting purposes.
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ACCORD|A GOLF TRUST ANNUAL AEFCAT 2018

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 Masch 2018

2 SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b} Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolication of a subsidiary begins when AGT obtains control cver the subsidiary and ceases
whan AGT loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consoldated statement of profit or
loss and ather comprehensive income from the date AGT gains control uniil the date when AGT
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Frofit or loss and each component of olher comprehensive income are attributed to the Unithalders
and to the non-controlling interest. Total comprehensive income of subsidiary is attributed to the
Unitholders and 1o the non-controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling interest
having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial information of the subsidiary to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies

All intragroup assets and liabilities, eguity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in axisting subsidiary

Changes i the Group®s ownership interests in subsidiary that do not result in the Group losing
contral over the subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's interests and the non-controlling mferest are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interest are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the Unitholders,

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss 15 recognised in profit or loss and
Is caleulated as the difference between (i} the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any refained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the
assets {including goodwill), and Habilities of the subsidiary and any non-contralling interest. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted far as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or Labilities of the
subsiduary (e, reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specihied’
permitted by applicable IFRSs). Tha fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost 5 regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subseguent
accounting wnder 1AS 39 and, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associale of a joint venture.

In AGT's financial statements, investment in subsidiary (s carried at cost less any impainmeant in
net recoverable value that has been recognised in profit or loss.
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ACCORDIA GOLF TRUST ANNUAL REFDAT 2015

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 March 2018

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(e}  Financial Instrumenis recognition, measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial habilities are recognised on the statemant of financial position whan
the Group becomaes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other
than financial assets and financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added 1o or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assefs or financial liabilities, as approprate, on inital
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or foss

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is 3 method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrumant
and of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments (including al! fees on
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective inlerest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial instrument, ar whene
appropriate, a shorter period. Income and expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial instruments “at fair value through profit or loss®

Financial assets

All financial ascets are recognised and de-recognised on a trade date basis where the purchase or
sale of an investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within
the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss
which are initially measured at fair value

Loans and receivables

Trade and other receivables that have fised or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market are classified as “loans and receivables™. Loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables, bank balances and cash) are measured al amortised cost using Lthe effective
interest method less impairment. Interest income s recognised by applying the effective interast
method, excepl for shart-term receivables when the effect of discounting is immaterial

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assels are amessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reposting penicd.
Financeal assets are considerad to be impaired when there |5 objective evidence that, as a result of

one of more events that ocourred after the initial recognition of the financial assst, the estimated
fulure cash flows of the ivestment have been affected.
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ACCORD|A GOLF TRUST ANNUAL AEFCAT 2018

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 Masch 2018

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(e} Financial instruments réecognition, measurement and derecognitien (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairmant of financial assets (continued)

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include;

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency In interest or principal payments; ar
- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankrupicy or financial re-crganisation.

For certain categories of financial assets; such as trade recelvables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition assessed for impairment an a cotlective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
comrelate with default on receivables

For financial assets carned at amartsed cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest rata.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. 'When a trade receivable is uncallectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortsed cost, if, in a subsaquent period, the amount of the
impairment lows decreases and the decrease can be related obectively 1o an event accurming after the
Impalrment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit o
loss to the extent that the carmying amaunt of the investment at the date the impairment is revessed
does nat exceed what the amartisad cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Derecogniteon of financaal assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
assel expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retaing substantially
all the nisks and rewards of ownership and continues to controd the transferred asset, the Group
recognises (is retained interest in the asset and an associated llability for ameunts [ may have
1o pay. Il the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group conthnues o recognise the fmancial asset and also recognises a
collateralied bosrowing for the procesds recanad.
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ACCORDIA GOLF TRUST ANNUAL REFDAT 2015

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 March 2018

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(e} Financial Instruments recognition, measurement and derecognition (continued)
Financial labilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an I‘f]l]lr:,r instrument

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities, Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue Costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial [rabilities (including fimance lease payables, trade and other payables and membership
deposits) are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised
on an effective yield basis.

Interest-bearing bank borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method Interest expense caloulated wsing
the effective interast method is recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance with
the Group's accounting palicy far borrowing costs,

Derecognition of financial liabalities

The Group derecognizes financial liabrities when, and only when, the Group’s cbligations are
distharged, cancelled or expire.

(d} Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters o a vanely of dervative financial instruments o manage its exposure o
interest rate and foreign exchange rate risk, including interest rate swaps, Furthar details of
derivative financial instruments are disclosed in Mote 17 to the financial statements.

Derivatives ane initially recognisad at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reparting period. The resulting
gain of loss {5 recognisad in profit of loss immediately unless the derivative i designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition m profit or loss
depends an the nature af the hedge relatonship

A derivative |s presented as a non-current asset of a non-current lability if the remaining maturity
of the instrument 1= more than 12 manths and it 15 not expected to be realised or settled within
12 manths. Other denvatives are presented as current assets or current llabilites.
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ACCORD|A GOLF TRUST ANNUAL AEFCAT 2018

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 Masch 2018

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e} Hedge accounting

The activities of the Group expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates.
The Group uses Interest rate swap agreements o hedge the exposurne Those contracts that can
also be setthed in cash are treated as financial instruments. The Group do@s not use denvative
financial instrumants for spaculative purposes. The use of leveraged instruments is not permitted

At the Inception of the hedge relationship the entity documanis the relationship betwesn the
hedging instrument and the hedged 1tem, along with its risk management objectives and its
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermare, at the inception of the hedge
and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument that is used
in a hedging relationship is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of
the hedged ftem.

MNote 17 contains details of the falr values of the derivative instruments used for hedging purposes.

Cash flow hedges

Tne effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income, The gain or loss relating to the
ineffective partion is recognised immediately in profit or loss as part of other gains and losses

Amounts recognised in other compeehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified 1o
profit or loss in the periods when the hadged item is recognisad in profit or loss in the same lne of the
statement of profit or loss and other comiprehensive income as the recognised hedged item. However,
when the forecast transaction that is hedged resulis in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a
nan-financial liability, 1he gains and losses. previously accumulated in equity are transferred from equety
and included in the inital measurerment of the cost of the asset or kahility

Hedge accounting s discontineed when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. Any gain or loss accumulated in equity at that time remains in equaty and when the
farecast transactson is ultimately recognised in profit or loss, such gains and bosses are recognised
in profit or loss, or transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost
of the asset or lkabiity as described above. When a forecast transaction s no longer expecied
1o occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was accumulated in equity is recognised immediately
in profit or loss:
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ACCORDIA GOLF TRUST ANNUAL REFDAT 2015

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 March 2018

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

f) Leasing

Leases are classified as fimance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are cassified as operating leases

The a5

Azsats held under finance leases are recognised as assels of the Group at their fair valus at the
inception of the lpase or, if lower, al the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
correspanding hability to the lessor is inciuded in the consalidated statement of financial position
as a finance lease obligation, Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the ramaining
balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to profit or loss, unkess they ane
directly attributable to gualifying asseis. in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (see note (n) below}). Contingent rentals ane recognised
as expenses in the periods inwhich they are incurmed.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease, unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern i which econcmic benefits from the lpased asset ane consumed. Contingent rentals arsing
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Ifi the event that lease incentives are fecenved 10 enter Inlo operating leases, such ncentives ane
recognised as a liability, The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised &5 a reduction of rental
expense on a stralght-line basis, except whene another systematlc basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased aszet are cansumed,

(gl Inventories

Imventornes are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises restaurant
supplies. Cost is calculated wsing the first-in-first-out method, Met realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing,
selling and distribution.

(h} Property, plant and equipment

All items of propertly, plant and equipment, are initially recorded at cost. Except for golf course
land and constructbon In progress, they are subseguently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that fulure economic benefits
ascociated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

When significant parts of property, plant and eguipment are required to be replaced, the Group
recognises such parts as indvidual assets with specific useful lives if the recognition criteria ane
satisfied. All other repair and mamtenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred

Golf course land comprise of freehaold land plus any other costs that are directly attributable to
bringing thi asset to the locaton and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management.

Golf course land and construction in progress are nof depreciated and are initially recorded at
cost, and subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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ACCORD|A GOLF TRUST ANNUAL AEFCAT 2018

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 Masch 2018

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(h)  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cosl of assets (other tham freehold land and
construction in progress) less: their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-ling
mathad, on the following bases:

Building and structures - 110 56 years
Machinery, vehicles and fixtures - 110 25 years

Depreciation on assets under construction in progress commaences when the assets are ready for
their intended use

The carrying values of praperty, plant and eguipmant are rewiewed for impairment when events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial
year-end, with the effect of any changes in estimated accounted for on'a prospective basis,

Azsets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets or, if there s no certainty that the lessee will obtain ownership by the end of the
lease term, the assat shall be fufly depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its useful life.

An item of property, plant and equipment s derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected fo arse from the continued use of the asset. Any gain ar loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and Is recognised
in prafit or loss:

(i} Goodwill

Goodwill arsing on an acquisition of a business 1s carned at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment 1esting, goodwill is allocated to the Group®s cash-generating unit
that i expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwnll has been allocated s tested for impairment annualky,
or more frequently when thare i an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impawment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carning amount of any goodwill allccated to the unit and then ta
the other astets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill i recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised
far gooawill is not reversed in subsaquent perods

On dispesal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goadwill is included
in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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ACCORDIA GOLF TRUST ANNUAL REFDAT 2015

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 March 2018

z ESIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{j} Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assats acguired separately are reponed at cost less accumulated amoetsation (where they
have finite wseful lves) and accumulated impairment losses. Infangible assets wath finite useful lives
are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting perod, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis, Intangible assets wath indefinite useful
liwes that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment bosses,

(k) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets ather than goodwill

At the end of each reparting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to ceterming whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss, It any swch indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
arder 1o determine the extent of the impainment loss (if anyl. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimaltes the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating wnit to which the asset belongs. When & reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otharwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasanable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value In wse. In assessing
value in use, the estimated futurs cash flows are dscounted 1o their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted,

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be |ess than its
carrying amount, the carymng amount of the asset {or cash-generating wnit) s reduced to its
recoverable amount, An impairment loss is recognised immediataly in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrypng amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised Tor the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss 15 recognised immediately in profit or loss

(I} Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a pressnt obligation (legal or constructive) as a
resull of & past evant, it is probable that the Group will be required o settle the abligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amaunt of the obligation

The amount recagnised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideraton required to settle the
presant obligation at the end of the reparting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surfaunding the obligation. When a prowision is measured usmg the cash flows astimated Lo seltle
the present oblgation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset If it Is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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ACCORD|A GOLF TRUST ANNUAL AEFCAT 2018

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 Masch 2018

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{m) Revenue recegnition

Revenue comprises golf course revenue, restaurant revenue and membership revenue. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.

Revenue s recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprahensive income as
fallows:

. Golf course revenue and restaurant revenue are recognised upon the delivery and
completion of the services

. Membership revenue consists of annual membership fees and membership enrolment and
transfer fees. Annual membership fees are recognised on a straight line basis over the period
in which the membership fees are paid. Annual membership fees hbilled in advance of the
rendenng of serviices are deferred and presented in the statement of financial position as
unearned revenue. Membership enrolment and membership transfer Tees are recognised
in full in the financial year when new members are admitted or transferred,

{n} Borrowing costs
All barrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the pericd in which they are incurred.
o}  Retirement benefit cost

Payments to defined contributions retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense when
employeas have rendered the services entithing them to the contributions,

{p} Employee leave entitlement
Employes entitlerments to annual leave are recognised whan they accrue to employees. A provision
15 made for the estimated llability tor annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees
up to the end of the reparting periad.

(g} Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the 1ax currently payable and deferred tax.
Currant Lax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable prafit differs fram
profit as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or logs and other comprehansive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductitdle in other years and
It further axcludes ilems that are not taxable ar deductible. The Group®s liahility for current tax is

calculated using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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ACCORDIA GOLF TRUST ANNUAL REFDAT 2015

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 March 2018

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{q) Taxation (eontinued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax s recognised on the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilitios in the consolidated financial statermants and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised If the temporary difference arises from goodwill ar
from the initial recognition {othar than in a business combination} of othar asseis and liabilities
in @ transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax Liahbilities are recognised on taxable temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiary, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will nol reverse in the foresegable future. Delerred
tax assets arsing from deductibde temporary differences associated with such investments and
Interests are only recognised to the extent that it 5 probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expecied
to reverse in the foreseeable future,

The camying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it 15 no longer probable that suffickent taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset fo be recovered

Deferred tax ks calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the pericd in which the
liabHlity is sattled or the asset realised based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
leabilities and assels reflects the lax conseguences that would follow from the manner in whech
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting perod, to recover ar settle the carmying amount
of its assels and habilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to sat off
current tax assets against current tax liabilitees and when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same laxation authority and the Group intends 1o settle its current tax assels and liabilities
an a net basis.

Current and deferrad tax for the vear

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expensa or income in prafit or loss, except when
they relate ta items credited or debited outside profit o loss {either in other comprehensive
incorme or directly in equity), in which case the tax & also recognised outside profit ar loas (either
in ather comprahensive incoma ar directly in equity, respectively), or where they arise from the
initial accounting for a business combination. In the case of a business combmation, the tax effect
I taken into acceunt in calculating goodwill or determining the excess of the acquirer's interest in
the ret fair value of the acquires’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent labilities over cost.
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ACCORD|A GOLF TRUST ANNUAL AEFCAT 2018

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 Masch 2018

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{r)}  Foreign currency transactions and translation

The individual financial statements of each group enfity are measured and presented in the
currency of the primary economic envircnment that the entity operates in (its functional currencyl.
The accompanying financial statements are prepared and presented in IPY, the functional currency
of AGT, for financial reporting purposes.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual entity, transactions in currences other than
the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) ate recogmised at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the date of the transaction. At the end of each reporting pernod, monetary liems denominated
Im foreign currencies are refranslated at the rates prevalling at the end of the reporting penod. Non-
monetary items carned at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are refransiated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined, Non-manetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are nod refranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the seltlement of monetary items, and on retranstation of
monetary items are included in profit or loss for the period, Exchange differences arising on the
retransiation of non-monetary tems camed at fair value are mcluded in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and fosses are recognised in other comprehansive income. For such non-monetary items,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income.

(s) Levies

Property tax is imposed on the regstered owner of the property as at 1 lanuary each year, and the
fiablity regarding property tax is recognised in full on the levied date as the abligating event that
gives rise to the [ability is the actity that triggess the paymaent of levy as identified by legislation.
Accordingly, the total amount of property tax is recognised in full in profit or loss during the
period when the properly Lax is levied,

{t})  Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits and other short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and subject to an insignificant iick of changes in value,

{u}  Distribution policy

The distribution of AGT is based on the cash flow it receives from the TK Operator pursuant to
its TK Interest under the TK Agreement enterad into with the TE Operatar. Due 1o the difference
between cash flow and accounting profits of the Tk Operator, the cash flow received by AGT may
comprise prafits from the TE Operator’s operations and return of capital from the TK Interest.

Under the TE Agreement, AGT will be entitled to 98.99% of the profits of the T& business and
such profits are subject to a withhoelding tax at a rate of 20.42% when distributed to AGT. Return
of capital from the TK Interast i generally not taxable a3 long 2 the accumulated return of capital
15 lower than the ongmal cost of mvestment by AGT. After deducting expenses at the AGT level,
such as the Trustee-Manager’s fee and other trust expenses, the residual cash flow s available
far distribution bo Unitholders as distributable income.
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ESIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(u) Distribution policy (continued)

AGT"s distribution policy is to distribute 100.0% of AGT's distributable income for the period
from 1 August 2014 1o 31 March 2015, Thereafter, the Trustee-Manager will distribute at feast
090.0% of AGT's distributable income, with the actual level of distribution to be determingd at
the Trustee-Manager Board's discretion, having regard to fundging requirements, other capital
management considerations and ensuring the overall stability of distributions.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates, assumpticns and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical exparience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances,

(a) Mon-depreciation of proparty, plant and equipment - Golf course land

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying value of property, plant and eguipment are IPY 146,033
million (2017 JPY 146,536 million), as dschosed in Note 10 to the financial statements. Al items
of property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses,

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment, adjusted for
residual value, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight line methad. The Trusteo-
Manager exercise their judgement in estimating the wseful lives and residual values of the
depreciable assets. The estimated useful lives reflect the Trustee-Manager's estimate of the period
that the Group intends 1o derve future economic benefits from the use of the depreciable assets.

The Group’s golf courses reside on a mixture of freehold land of approximately 9% (2017: 63%)
and leasehold land of approximately 319% (2017: 21%). The lease periods of the leasehold land
are for an initial term of 20 years. The leases have been subsequently renewed based on the
same conditions of the original lease agreements. There are no terms or conditions in the lease
agreements in relation to the termination of the lease agreements during the lease term and
there have been na prior cases of termination during the lease term. The Trustee-Manager is of
the wiew that it is reasonably certain that the Group will be able to remew the leases in order to
derive future sconamic benelits from the use of the golf courses. Accordingly, golf course land
Is accounted for as a non-depreciable asset

(b} Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

The Trustee-Manager reviews the carmying values of property, plant and equipment for impairment
whien events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
If any such Indication exists, the recoverable amounts of the assets are estimated in order 10
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use

In assessing the recoverable amount of the assets, significant judgements are used to estimate
the future cash flows generated from the goll courses and the discount rates applied in the
discounted cash flow analysis. In making these judgements, the Trustee-Manager has relied on
the past performances ol the gall courses and it expectalions of markel development. Specific
eslimates are disclosed in Mote 10.

Far the current financial year, the Group recorded an Iimpairment loss on property, plant and

aguipmeant amounting to JIPY 1,720 millien (2017 JPY 1,499 milon) for those loss-making golf
courses, Management i of the wiew the impairment lass recorded is reascnable and adequate.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
{c) Impairment assessment of goodwill

On 1 August 2014, AGT acquired Accordia Golf Asset (“SPC") which owns a partiolio of 89 golf
courses across lapan. As a result of the acquisition, the Group recorded goodwill of 1PY 17,079
millign, the difference between purchase consideration of JPY 75,225 million and fair value of
net assets acquired of IPY 58, 146 million.

Goodwill has been attributed to symengies arising from

. centralised utilisation of golf course maintenance equipment among golf courses within
the same region;

- centrafisation of all major pricing, purchasing, marketing, advertising and human resounce
decisions, except for hiring of operational stafi;

- centralised procurement system whereby majority of the food and supplies across the all
golf courses are purchased;

- centralised membership loyalty points system across all golf courses.

Tne Trustee-Manager has identified each golf course as a separate cash-generating unit (*CGU"}
far the purpose of impairment testing. As the 89 golf courses benefit from the synergies, the
Trustee-hdanager cannot allocate the goodwill to each of the B0 golf courses, except om an
arbitrary basis. The combination of B9 CGUs represents the lowest level at which the Trustee-
Manager captures information, for internal management reporling purposes, about the benefits
of the goodwill.

For the purpose of the annual impairment assessment of goodwill, the Trustee-Manager had
engaged an mdependent external valwer to estimate the recoverable amount of SPC as at 31 March
2018

The assumptions and judgement involved in estimating the recoverable amount of SPC include
discount rate, revenue growth rate and terminal growth rate. These aumptions and judgement

are disclosed in Naote 11,

Based on the annual goodwill impairment assessment performied by the Trustee-Manager, goodwill
was nal impaired.

{d} Uncertain tax position
The Group is subject 1o income taxes in lapan and Singaporé. In determining the Income
tax liabilities, the Trustee-hManager has estimated the amount of capital allowances and the

deductibility of cartain expenses {"uncertain tax positions”] at each tax jurisdiction

As the Trustee-Panager believes that the tax positians are sustainable, the Group has not
recognised any additional tax lability on ihese uncerain tax positions
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

fa)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

The following table sets out the financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

Group AGT
2018 2017 2018 2017
IPY million  IPY million  JPY million  JPY million

Financial assets
Loans and receivables:

Cath and bank balances B.145 10,252 116 5B
Trade and othier receivables 2.586 2.407 2,946 4,482
Other financial assets . n LI -
Total non-dervative financial assets 10,812 12,730 3.062 4,540

Derivative financial instruments not
designated in hadge accounting
relationships - - - -

10,812 12,730 3.062 1,540
Financial liabilities
Amartised cost
Borrowings from financial institutions 42,955 43,129 - -
Membership deposits 10,552 12,036 - -
Trade and ather payables 4,164 . 294 148 166
Finance lease payablas 4,027 2,878 - -
Borrowings from a related party So0 500 - -
Cther financial liabilities 527 521 - -
Total non-derivative financial
liahifities 62,725 63,358 148 166
Derivative financial instruments in
designated hedge accounting
relationships 78 201 - -
62,803 653,559 148 166

Financial risk management policies and objectives

The Group's activities expase it to a variely of financial risks: forelgn currency risk, credit risk,
lkquidity risk and Interest rate risk. The Group's overall risk management program focuses on the
unpfedictability of financial markats and seaks 1o minimise the potential adversa effects of changes
in the financial markets on the financial periormance of the Group. Risk management is carried
out by the responsible entity of the Group under internal management policies.

The Trustee-Manager identifes, evaluates and manages financial risks and provides guidelines for

overall risk management, covering specific areas, such as mitigating interest rate and credit risks,
as well a5 the investing excess liquidity
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISK MANMAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b}  Financial risk management policies and objectives (continued)
Market risk exposures are measurad using sensitivity analysis indicated below,

(i}  Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency rick arising from changes in foreign currency exchange rates has a financial
effect on the Group and AGT in the current reporting period and in future years.

The Group 5 not exposed 1o significant currency risk as its portfolio of golf courses held
by the TK Operator is located in Japan and the cash flows from the operations of the golf
courses are denominated in JRY, the functional currency of the entities.

Howewer, AGT will receive dstnbutions from the TK Operator where operationsl cash
flows are denominated in JPY, while AGT's distributions to Unitholders are dengminated
in Singapore dollars (5GD). This exposes AGT to foreign currency risk.

(i)  Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial koss to the Group,

Trade recevables primarily compnse of recevables due from credit card companies, and
receivables due from members for their annual membership fee.

The collection from credit card companies is once every two weeks, and the amounts are
considered recoverable.

For receivables due from members for their annual membership fee, the allowances for
doubtful receivables are made based on the Group's collections experience. The past
dué amounl is nol impaired as the Truslee-Manager believes that there has nol been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are cansidered recoverable. Accardingly,
the allowance for doubtiul debts recorded by the Trustee-Manager as at 31 March 2018
is 1PY 448 millicn (2017: JPY 430 million).

The analysis of trade receivables that are past due but not impaired at the end of the
reparting penod s provided in the table below:

Group

1018 2007
JPY million  JPY milllan

Trade recervables past due not impalred

Less than 3 mamths 2,596 1.422
Between 3 to & months = 985
2,598 2407
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINAMCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b} Financial risk management palicies and ebjectives (continued)
(0}  Credit risk (continued)
The carrying amounts of financial assets as shown in the statements of financial position

represent the maximum amount of credit sk that the Group and AGT is exposed 1o at the
date of the financial statements.

Thie credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is [Imited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies

(i} Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk reflacts the risk thail theé Group will have insufficient resources to meet its
fimancial liabilities as they fafl due.

Thi fallowing tables detail the remaining contractual maturity for non-dervative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the ungiscounted cash flows of financial
liatrilities based on the earliest date an which the Group can be required to pay. The table
incledes both interest and principal cash flows.

Non-derivative fenancial liabilities

Waighted
average On demand
Intarest rate or within Within Alter
per annurm 1 year 210 5 yeans 5 years
JPY million JPY million JPY million
Group
2018
Floating rabe = bormowengs From financial
It ibutions 312% 29513 14,474
Fineel rates — hesrrsspng from a related party 3 (Wi 15 &0 425
Finanie lease poyables 2.40% 1,051 2693 4R}
Tracke and other payables - 4,164 - -
Membership deposits 0. 16% 10,539 a -
Ortheer Rkt = LT - 5
Tatal A5 804 17198 912
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b}  Financial risk management policies and objectives (continued)

(i)  Liquidity risk (continued)

Walghted
average On demand
Imferost rate ar within Within Aftor
PET AR 1 year 2 10 5 yoars 5 yoars
iPY million  JPY milllon  iPY millicn
Group
2017
Flowting rate - borowings fram financal
Inestitutipen 3.08% 15,516 19,358

Fined rage ~ barmewang from a relted party 3.00% 15 B0 fak)
Finance lpaso paysbles 313% 134 1,855 L
Trade and other payadles = 4,294 = =
Membership deporits 0483 11,2328 #23
Crthar habilgies - 516 - 5
L 32,303 33176 1,165

All non-derivative financial llabdlities of AGT as at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are on demand
or due within ona year

Darivative financial Nakbdlities

The table below analyses the derivative financial instruments of the Group for which
contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of cash flaws inla
relevant matunty groupings based on the remaining pericd from the date of statement of
financlal position to the confractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscownted cash flows

On demand
ar within Within
1 yoar 212 5 yoars

JFY milllen IFY millian

Defwanive financial labilioes

GIsde

018

Met settled: Interest Rate Svwap ig B0

Group
2017
Het settled: Interest Rate Swap 12 189
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISK MAMNAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b} Financial risk management palicies and ebjectives (continued)
(lii} Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had negative working capital of JFY 38,3218 millian (2017:
JPY 23,481 million). This inciudes;

1[}} 1Py 2,584 million (2017; JFY 2,769 million) of unearned membership revenue, which
represents collections recelved from customers and do not require any future cash
outflow from the Group,

LT} a current portion of membsership deposits of IPY 10,521 million (2017; 1P 11,215 million],
Based on the historical trend, the redemption amount by members is significantly lower
than the current potion of membership deposits recorded by the Group; and

{li} a cument portion of borrowings from financial Institutions of JIPY 28,847 million
{2017 IPY 14,830 million) is due on August 2018

The Trustee-Manager has carefully maonitored and managed its cash flow. Management
and operation réports are prepared and reviewed on @ monthly basis. Cash flow forecasts
are prepared on a monthly basis to project cash flow reguirements of the Group using
the various general and operational assumptions which takes into account, (i) reasonably
possible changes in business performance, and (i) the on-gaoing discussion held between
management and financal institutions on the refinancing arrangement. (Mote 2{aj}.

After considering the above factors and the wpcoming refinancing of current bank
borrowings, the directors expect the Group to be in a positive working capital position
in the next twelve months. The directors believes that the Group has adequate
working capital for its present reqguirements and that its existing loan facilities,
together with cash and cash equivalents will provide sufficient funds to satisfy ifs
working capital reguirements and anticipated capital expenditures and other payment
obligations for the next twelve months, including its proposed upcoming distribution of
JPY 1,985 million 1o unitholders.

(iv) Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate nsk arses from borrowangs from financial irstitutions. Borrowings issued
at variable rates exposa the Group to cash tlow interest rate sk The Group manages its cash
flows interést rate risk by using floating-to-fixed interast rate swaps, Such interest rate swaps
have the economic effect of converting bormowings from floating rates to fixed rates. Generally,
the Group rases long-term barroswings at floating rates and swaps them into fmed rates that
are lewver than those available if the Group borrowed at fixed rates directly,

Under the interest rate swaps, the Group agress with ather parties to exchange, at specified
ntenvals (mainfy siz-manthly), the difference between fixed cantract rates and fioating rate

mnlerest amounts calculated by reference 1o the agreed notional principal amounts

Further details of the interest rate swap contracts are found in Mote 17
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED])
{b}  Financial risk management pelicles and objectives (continued)

(v} Interest rate risk (continued)
ho sensitivity analysis is prepared as the Group does not expect any material effect on the
Group's profit or loss and equity arising from the effects of reasonably possible changes
to imterest rates on interest bearing financial instruments as the majority of the principal
amount of the Group's fleating rate bormowings are hedged using interest rate swaps at
the end of the reporting period

(¥} Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, frade and other receivabies and
payables, short-term borrowings from financial institutions and short term membership
deposits approximate thair respective fair values due to the relatively shori-term maturity
ol these financial instruments. For the other class of financial assets and labilities, Trustes-
Manager considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial leabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the financial information aporoximate their fair values.

Some ol the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. The following table gives information about how the
fair values of dervative financial mstruments are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniguels) and inputs used).

Fair value as at
Valuation Significant
Financial asseta/ 2018 017 Fair value  techniquels); and  uncbiervable
liabilitins JPY miillion Y million hierarchy ey inputis) inputis)
Iriterest Hate Liabiibities: Linbibithes: Ll 2 Fair value of iMerest BliA
S Curnent = 18 Current = 13 ralE A
Moncwrent = B0 Non-cusment = 18% calculated &6 the
{desig | for  {desig 1 for present value of the
hedging) hadging) estmated future
cash flowt bhured
on chrerable yield
TUveEL

There were no transfers between levels of the fair value hserarchy in the current reporting
pariod.

The Group's capital risk management objectives are 1o saleguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to mainiain an optimal caprial structure so as (0 mawmise
shareholder value. To achieve its capital risk managemant objectives, the Group may adjust
the amount of dividend payment, return capital 1o Unitholders, lssue new units and obtain
new borrowings. The Group's overall strategy remnains unchanged from 2017
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISK MAMNAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Financial risk management policies and objectives (continued)

{v}  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilitles (continued)

The Group monitors capital via the debt-to-equity ratio and the net debt-to-equity ratio,
which are calculated as total debt divided by equity and total debt net of cash and bank
balances {"Met debt®) divided by equity. Total debt comprises *Borrowings from financial
instituticns”, "Finance lease payabies”®, "Borrowing from a related party” and *Membership
deposits® as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. Equily is the total
equity as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position

In adefition, the Group also specifically monitors the financial ratios of its debt covenants
stated in the agreements with the financial institutions providing the loan facilities to the
Group, The Group is in compliance with externally imposed capital requirements for the
year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017,

The debi-1o-equity ratio is as follows:

Group
2018 2017

JPY million  JPY million
Total debt 58,034 58,543
Cash and bank balances {8.145) 110,252)
Net debt 49,889 48,291
Total equity 80,155 80,596
Debt-to-equity ratio 0.72 073
Net debt-to-equity ratio 0.62 0.60

5 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
{i}y The Trustee-Manager

The Trustee-Manager, Accordea Golf Trust Management Ple. Ltd, was incorporated in Singapore
under the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore, an 20 March 2014,

The Trustee-Manager is 49.0% held by the Sponsor and 51.0% held by the TM Parlner, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Daiwa Securities Group

The Trustee-Manager has the dual responsibility of safeguarding the interests of Unitholders and
managing the business conducted by AGT. The Trustee-Manager has powers of management over
the business and assets of AGT and its main responsshility is to manage AGT's asseis and liabilities
for the benefit of the Unithalders as a whole.

Tha Trustee-Manager i enfitled 1o a base fee and a performance fee as specified under the Trust

Deed. The hase fee and performance fee are payable to the Trustes-Manager in the form of cash
andfor wnits (as the Trustee-Manager may alect).
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5 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(i}  The Trustee-Manager (continued)

The following significant transactions occurred between AGT and the Trustee-Managar, which
indludes the cost of key management personnel, during the reporting period:

Group
2018 07
JBY million  JPY million
Trustee-hanager fees 254 253
Expense reimbursement - 8

{ii} Accordia Golf Co., Ltd and its subsidiaries (the "Sponsor group®)’

The following significant transactions occurred between the Group and the Sponsor group during
the reporting period:

Group

2018 2017
JPY million  JPY million

Accordia Golf Co., Ltd (the "Sponsor”)

Golf course management fees? 5.823 5,915
Staff sacondment fees 1.715 1,712
Operating kease expenses (Note 27] 3B T8

Payment on behalf of the Group:

- Web sales commission 1,259 1,210
- Publication fees 65 70
- Headguarter expenses 465 315
Interest expense on subordinatad loan® (Note 22) 15 15
Repayment of finance lease obligations {inclusive of GAT) 338 433
Interest expense on finance leases (Note 22) 26 43

Collection an behalf of the Group:

~ Annual membership fea {57 (64)

- Play fee (14) (19)
Reimbursement of shareholders’ coupon consumed® (399) (480)
Custamer loyalty points awasrdedf{redeemed), net of

redeemedfawardedy 26 {38)
Sales commission incame for new membership sign up 6 (1n
Purchases of food and supply through centralised procurement

system at no mark-up” 5.558 -
Int=grated procurement system usage fee” 16 -
Caollection of pro-shop business revenue on behalf by the Group (485) -
Payment of using pro-shop merchandise for recruitment and

corparate activities {23) -
Commission fee mcome from Pro-5hop Business® {17) -
Compensation for goif course damage {145) =
Galf course operation consulting fee 7B -
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5 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(i) Accordia Golf Co., Ltd and its subsidiaries {the "Sponsor group”™) (continued)
Group

2018 2017
JPY million  JPY million

Accordia Retall Co. Ltd'

Collection of pro-shop business revenus on behalf by the Group 1,932 2,384
Payment of using pro-shop merchandise for recruitment and

corporate activities 102 140
Commission fee income from Pro-Shop business {57) {73}

Golf Alliance Co. Ltd.
Purchases of food and supply through centralised procurement

system at no mark-up? - 5.613
Paymen! for operating expenses® - 148
Integrated procurement system usage fee’ - 18

Heartree Co. Lid.
Purchase of restaurant kitchen equipment - [T}]
Discounts received for centralised purchases {62) (39}

Accordia Golf Garden Co. Ltd.
Recharge of golf lesson fees {22) {23}

1 dccordia Retail Co. Lid, wos amalgamated snbo decorda Golf €o., Lid @nd cessed 10 exist a4 at 7 Jiruary 2018 The
figures prosemted were for S months from 1 Apnd 2007 1o 31 December 2017 and tramactions afior smalgamation
wie inlucled in Accordia Golt Co, Lid

1 The Group snted o the Gall Coursse Managerment Agreemanl witls the Spaniar, pustanl 1o which 1P Spomsor
will prerriche, intor alis, golf couns mansgamant serices in respect of the Initial Portfolio. Puruant to the Golf Courta
Mantagenent Agresment, the Sponor o entiled 1o goll coune cpersling and mansgemsenl lees compinnig & bas

we, am inceniive fee, a membershap revenue incentive Tee and an integrated pufchasing dystem usage fee. Golf course
msnagernent lees sre pald n cash by SPC

1 The Sponicr s proveded & subsrdinated loan 10 SPC of IPY 500 mdiien & 8 lized interest raie of 3.0% per anniem
arwd payable semi-annually Tor the entine loan Lerm. The loan 5 repayable upon dscontinuation of the TE business. SPC
ingected its owmn radk, Tundsd wsing this subandinased koan, ints the TE butmnpss

4 The Sponsor msued vouchers 1o its shareholders which entrtle 1hem 1o play ol 5PC°s golf courses at a discourted rate
The value of the discount given 1o the shareholders {or coupons consumed s embursed by the Sponsor 1o the Group
ared reconded as part of The Group's revinue

5 Members who pliy goll in SPCS ol courie will b awardid cusiorned lovaily points eguivalent i 1% 0 2% of talei
amount; The Group pays the Sponsor the amnount equivalent 1o paints swarded. Upon memben” ederplion, the
Speanser pays the Groug the amaunt egubalent (o points redecmod. Tha payment 16 the Sporsor for painey awarded
ard tha receipt from the Sponsot for points redesmssd are tettied on 4 net Bass. Diing the cumen financid year, thens
I'i TR F"::; 10 [2007; rt paymant inam) the Sponsor dus ta mode (2017 lekd) customens loyalty posats swarded
fham redesr i

& The golf-shop busness lthe *Pio-Shop Buisnes®) has not been fransfened to @8C and contisued 1o be owned and
eperated by the Spansce’s subsidiary, Accordia Retad Co. Lid

Accoidla Retal Co. Litl subiouroed stmm ol the opstations ol Pro-Shogr Bussesns, inckidiey goods ane oy
management, welling stbrites snd revenee cash management o SPC and SPC sarned commmaan income Tee Irom
managing the Pro-Shop Business

T InFY2017, urdher the Golf Course Managemant Agreemant, the purdhasing fumcton of SPC i cutsourced 1o the Sponsor
The purchasing Tunclion of the Spomscr i centrally managed by Goll Aiande Co Lid, & sulsidiary of the Sponid,
theomgh the wse of an integrated purchiasing wystem

In FY 3018, Golf Alance Co. Ltd. was amalgamated mo Accoedis Golf Co, Lid and ceased to oot a5 at 1 Apnil 2017,
Tranaactions afier amalgamation were induded & Accordia Golf Ca, Lid.

B Galf Alliaee Ca. L1d msde paymant on behall Tar sxperied such a1 irdoim fefiasl coql, membesihia booklet and
ciher miscellinsoun cows
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5 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(ilii) Dalwa Real Estate Asset Management Co. Ltd. And its related companies (the “TM Partner
group”)
The following significant transactions occurred between the Group and the TM Pariner group
during the reparting period

Group

2018 2017
JPY million  JPY milllan

Daiwa Real Estate Asset Management Co. Ltd.
(the "TM Partner”)
Ascet management fees? 100 100

9 Puruant 1o the Assel Management Agreement, the asset manages s entitied 1o a base fee and the fee s pad in cash
by the Sponsar on behalf of SPC

] CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Group AGT
2018 2017 2018 2017
JPY million  JPY million  JPY million  JPY million
Cash an hand 858 514 - -
Cash at bank 7.238 9.689 116 58
Cash and cash equivalents 8,096 10,203 116 58
Fided deposits 49 A9 - -
Total 8.145 10,252 116 58

As at 31 March 2018, fixed depaosits of of IPY 49 million (2017 IPY 49 miBion) have not been classified
as “cash and cash equivalents® as the maturity date of these fived deposits is more than three months

The Group has pledged all cash balances held as bank deposits by the SPC to secure borrowings
from financial institutions (Mote 12), Based on the terms of the borrowings, a certain amount of
cash is reserved for the Group's operational use and restricted from being distributed 10 Unitholders
Accardingly, management has classified such pledged cash balances as cash and cash equivalents within

the statements of financial position and the cash flow statement.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group AGT

2018 2017 2018 2017
IPY million  JPY millien  JPY million  JPY million

Trade receivables

Trade receivables 3,044 2,B8T - -

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (448) [480) - -
2,596 2,407 -

Other receivable

Distribution receivable from subsidiary - - 2,946 4,482

Tetal trade and other receivables 2,506 2,407 2,946 4,482
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7 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Movemant In the allowance for doubtful debts

Group

2018 2017
IPY millian  JPY million
Ralance at the beginning of the year 480 S02
Increase in allwance recognised in profit or loss 104 141
Amaunts written off during the year _ [138) {163)
Balance at the end of the year 448 480

] OTHER ASSETS
Group AGT
2018 2017 2018 2017

IPY million  JPY million  JPY million JPY million

Other current assets

Frepaid expenses 1.190 1.204 1 1
Dither current assets 17 2 15 -
1.207 1,206 16 1

Other non-current assets
Deposits paid 1o landlord 09 308 - -
Lang-term prepaid expenses 67 207 - -
Deposits for golf memberships 65 65 - -
Other non-current assets 4 a4 = =
445 S84 - B

b INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY

AGT
2018 2017
JPY million  JPY million
Balance ¢ at the beginning of 1he year 75,447 T, 200
Relurn an investment - (53)
Balance as at the end of the year 75,447 75,447
Details of the subsidiary of the Group as at 31 March 2018 are as follows:
Country of
incorporation Proportion of
Name of subsidiary Principal activities and operation TK Interest
018 2017
b ]
Accordia Golf Azzet Godo  Speclal purpoie entity - lapan 9893 98.99
Kaisha (SPC)" [mvestment in goif course
assels

1 Although AGT holds no witing rghis sn the SPC It hia the ability 10 uwse it power 1o alfect its reburns Tram b SPC pustiuant
ta the TR Aggeement (oe Note 1), asd AGT receses substantially all of the SPC'y econcsmic inderest Accosdagly, the Group
tegarels thee SPT a3 8 subnadiary

2 Auchisd by PriceamierhoiseCoopers Aarats LLE lor conwalelabon puspouss an'y
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10 PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Machinary,
Golf course Buildings and vehicles and Construction
Group land structures fixtures in progress Total
JPY million  JPY milllon  JPY milion  JPY milllen  JPY million

Cost
At 1 April 2016 122173 26,448 5,740 154 154,515
Additions T8 945 1.339 276 2,638
Transfers - 397 - (397) -
[Hspaosals {173 {21} [ 165) = {217}
At 31 March 2017 122,234 27,759 6,910 33 156,936
Additions 10 1.852 2,557 5 4,424
Transfers - 12 1a (29) -
Disposals - {28) {302} (4] {334)
At 31 March 2018 122,244 29,602 9,175 5 161,026
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2016 - 3,989 1,672 - 5.661
Depreciation during the year - 2.134 1.112 - 3,246
Disposals - {31} [155) - {190)
At 31 March 2017 - 6,052 21.625 - B.717
Depreciation during the year - 1,971 1.175 - 3,146
Disposals - - [273) - {273)
At 31 March 2008 = 8,063 3,527 = 11,590
Accumulated impairmant
At 31 March 2007 1,199 384 =11 ] - 1,683
Impairment loss recognised

in the year 1,363 289 68 = 1,720
At 31 March 2018 2,562 683 158 - 3,403
Carrying value
At 31 March 2018 119,682 20,856 5.4890 5 146,033
At 31 March 2017 121,035 21,273 4,185 33 146,536

During the year, the Group carned oul a review of the recoverable amount of property. plant and
equipment, having considered the financial performance of the godf courses, The review led to the
recognition of an impairment koss of IPY 1,720 million (2017 1#Y 1,499 million), which has been
included im other operating expenses. The recoverable amouwnt of property, plant and equipment has been
estimated on the basis of their value in wse (2017: value in use). The discount rate used in measuring
value in use was between 7.0 to 11.8% (2017: 7.0 to 11.8%:) per annum

If the discoun? rate used o estimate recoverable amount has increased/decreased by 5%, the impairment
loss recognised for the current finandial year will have been JPY 2,109 million higher/IPY 1,815 million lower

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has pledged certain freehold land, golf courses and bulldings with
total camying amounts of approximately IPY 132,630 million (2017 IPY 132,630 million), to secure the
borrowings granted to the Group (Note 12k

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment held by the Group under finance lease
arrangements (Note 13) are IPY 3,712 million (2017: JPY 2,662 million] as at 371 March 2018.
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11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Group Goodwill Sofiware Others Total
IPY million  JPY million  JPY million  JPY million

Cost

At 1 April 2016 17,072 32 az 17,143

Additions - 1 - 1

At 31 March 2017 17,079 33 32 17,144

Additions - 129 — 129

At 31 March 2018 17,079 162 32 17.273

Accumulated amortisation

At 1 April 2016 - Il - 7

Amartisation during the year = [ - 1]

At 31 March 2017 - 13

Amartisation during the year = 15 - 15

At 31 March 2018 - 28 -

Carrying amount

AL 31 barch 2018 17,079 134 32 17,245

At 31 March 2017 17.079 20 32 17,131

The value of the goodwill is allocated 1o the SPC which is principally engaged in the golf courses business
in Japan {Kote 3ch).

Impairment test for goodwill

The Group tests goodwill anmually for impalement or mare frequently if there are indications that goodwall
might be impained.

The recowerable amount of the SPC s determined based an falr value less costs 1o sell caloulation. The
key assumplions Tor the fair value less costs 1o sell calculation are those regarding the discount rates,
growth rates and expected changes to selling price and direct costs during the period. The Trustee-
Manager estimates discount rates using post-tax rates that reflect current market assessmants of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the SPC. The growth rates are based on Industry growth
forecasts. Changes wm selling prices and direct casts are based on past practices and expectations of
future changes in the market.

The Group prepares the DCE valuation based on management’s latest business plan far fosecast horizan
of 3 years (2017 3 years) and darives the terminal value assuming no long term growth (2017 no long
term growth), The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from the SPC was 4 8% (2017: 4.4%)
per annum,

As at 31 March 2018, any reasonably possible change 10 the key assumptions applied are not likaly 1o
cause the recoverable amounts to be bebow the carrying amount of the SPC
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12 BORROWINGS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Group
2018 2017
JPY million  JPY million
Current partion 29,100 14,925
Less: Unamartised loan facility fee IZE\_S] (95)
28,847 14,830
Mon-current portion 14,325 28,950
Less: Unamaortised hoan facility fee (217) {651)
14,108 28,299
Total 42,955 43,129
The bank borrowings are denominated in JPY and are summansed as follows:
Group
2018 2017

JPY million  JPY million

Qutstanding principal amount

Term Loan A 14,475 14,625
Term Loan B 14,475 14,625
Term Loan C 14,475 14,625

43,425 43,875

For Term Loan A, inlerest is levied at a floating inferest rate of 6-month JIPY TIBOR plus 125 basis points
per annum. The J-year term loan is repayable by semi-annivally instalments of IPY 75 million and by a
balleon repayment of JPY 14,625 million al matunty in August 2017

Far Term Loan B, interest is levied at a floating interast rate of B-manth JPY TIBOR plus 150 bases paints
per annum. Tha d-year term loan Is repayable by semi-annually instalments of JPY 75 million and by a
balloon repayment of JPY 14,475 millicn at maturity in August 2018

For Term Loan C, miefest & bevied at a floating mtenest rate of G-month JPY TIBOR plus 175 basis paints
per annurn. The S-year term loan is repavable by semi-annually instalments of JPY 75 million and by a
ballon repayment of IPY 14,325 million at matunty in August 2019

As disclosed n Note 17, the Group uses interest rate swaps to swap a portion of its borrowings fram
floating rates 1o fixed rates, As at 31 March 2018, the noticnal amount swapped was JPY 24,125 million
(2017 IPY 34,125 million}. The Group’s average effective Interest rate is 3.12% (2017 3.08%) per
AL,

The borrowings are secured by certain cash and cash equivalents, cenain freehold land, goit courses and
bulldings held by the Group (Motes & and 10}
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13 FINANCE LEASE PAYAELES

Present value Present value
Minimum Minimum  of minimum  of minlmum
lease lease bt lease
payments paymants paymenis paymenis
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
Group 201E 207 2018 2017
IPY miltion  JPY milllon  JPY milllon  JPY million

Amounts payable under finance leases.

Within one year 1,051 T4 983 659
In the second to fifth years inclusive 2,693 1,895 2,572 1,786
After fve years 481 441 472 433
4,225 2060 4,027 2.87R
Less: Future finance charges _{198) (182) = -
Present value of lease cbligations 4037 2 ETE 4,027 ___ 28&M8

Less: Amowunt due for settlement within
12 manths [shown under curment

liahifities) . (983} (659
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 3,044 2,219

The Group leased certain of its property, plant and equipment (Mote 10) under finance leases from the
Sponsor and other third parties. As at 31 March 2018, the finance lease payables to the Sponsor and to
the third parties are IPY B47 million (2077 IPY 1,206 million) and |PY 3,180 million {(2017: IFY 1,672
million) respectively

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the average lease term s 7.0 vears (2017 7.0 years), The Group
has options to purchase the leased assets at a value stipulated under the agreement upon expiry of the
lease terms. The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ title to the leased
assets (Note 10}

Interest rates undarlying all cbligations under finance leases are fixed at respective contract dates at an
average of 2.49% (2017; 3,13%} per annum for the year ended 31 March 2018.

14  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group AGT
2018 2017 2018 2017
IPY million  JPY milllon  JPY million JFY milllon

Trade payables 1.117 79 - 1"
Trade payable to subsidiary - - an N
Property and other lax payables 1.277 1.327 - -
Other payables to the Spansor group

{Mate 5 (i) 1.201 1,155 - -
Accrued expenses 76 i) 21 25
Management fee payable to the

Trustee-hManager (Note 5 {i)) 96 a9 96 99
Othar payables 1.674 2,182 - -
Total rade and other payaliles 5,441 5,621 148 ) 166

The average credil period on purchases of goods 15 1 manth (2017: 1 moenth). Mo interest ks charged
on averdue trade payables. The Group has linancial risk management policies in place to ensure that
2ll payables are within the credit timeframe. Trade payables and accrued expensas principally comprise
amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs

170/318



EDINETOOOO
Oo0ooooooooobo0oDo0obDo0ooDo0oooo0o0bDo0g0oOoo(Ese783)
OoOooooooooooooooodad

ACCORD|A GOLF TRUST ANNUAL AEFCAT 2018

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 Masch 2018

15  MEMBERSHIP DEPOSITS

Group
2018 2017
JPY million  JPY million
Tctal membership deposits 10,552 12,036
Less: Current porton 10521 (11,215)
MNan-current portion ER | 21

Membarship deposits perfain to deposits received from members, which are refundable after the lock-up
period ypon membars’ resignation and redemption of their memberships. The average lock-up period is
10 to 15 years. Upon the expiry of the lock-up penod, such membership deposits have been re-classified
from “mon-current labilities® 1o “current liabilities®,

For non-current membership deposits, Trustee-Manager has discounted the future cash cutflow using
the Group's borrowing rate, calculated as 3-month TIEOR + B&3 basis points. The ditferance between
membership ceposits receved and discounted cash flow 1s considered as “deferred membership revenue®
The deferred membership revenue is amortised over the lock-up period using the straight-line method
The fair value of the membership deposits received is amortised using the effective interest rate method
over the lock-up period

16 OTHER LIABILITIES

Group

2018 2017
JPY million  JPY million

Other current liabilities

Unearned membership revenue 2,584 2,769
Pravesion for unutilised employea leave 629 Gl4
Advanced receipt of Insurance compensation 1 28
Payable 1o the Sponsar group (Mote 5 (1)) 164 169
Provision for bonus 319 318
Other lax payables 326 EET
MNet Goods and Services Tax (GST) payable 63 86
Qther current liabilities 45 29
4,135 4,350
Other non-current liabilities
Payable to Qualified Institutional Investor 5 5
Other non-current liabilites 73 LE]
80 78

1 Mizdhe Secutithes Co,, Lo, A Qualifisd Inctitutionsl brvester (the “0I") under the Finarstial Insruments and Exchangs Act
{the “FIEA™), made & corrilaticn ta the TK busireis i onder to satisly certain regulalong requirgmenits unde: the FIEA, This
coniriution |5 mterast-free and % repayable upon discantinuation of the T boteess
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17 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Group
2018 2017
JPY million  JPY million

Interest rate swap designated and effective as hedging mstruments

carried at fair value - ﬂ'gj ._':.?..E,‘.E'.
{78) (201}

Analysed as:
Current lkabilities {18) (123
Nan-current liabilities {60} (1891
(78) (201)

Interest rate swaps

Thie Group uses Interest rate swaps 10 manage its exposune to intarast rate movements an its borrowings
from financial institutions by swapping a proportion of those boarrowings from floating rates to fixed
rates. All interast rate swap contracts exchangimg floating rate interest amounts for fiked rate interest
amounts are designated as cash flow hedges in arder to reduce the Group’s cash flow exposure resulting
fram vanable interest rates on boonowings. The interest rate swaps and the interest payments on the foan
occur simullaneously and the amount deferred in eguity is recognised in profit or loss over the period
that the fleating rate interest payments on debt impact profit or loss

The fair value of interest rate swaps with nominal value of IPY 24,125 million (2017; PY 34,125 million)
a5 at 31 March 2018 is estimated at Y 78 million (2017; IFY 201 million), which resulted in derivative
financial instrument liability of the Group. These amounts are based on using valuation technigues as at
year end, The aforementiored interest rate swaps gualify for hedge accounting.

Theretore, the changes in the fair value ol hedging interest rate derivative, totalling gain of
JPY 123 millian (2017 IPY 197 million) for the year ended 31 March 2018 have been recognised directly

in other comprehensive income

18 UNITHOLDERS' FUNDS

Group and AGT Group AGT
Ho1a 2017 2018 207 2018 2017
Humber Humber 1Py IPY IFY 1Y
af units af units millian millian million millian
Dalance at the beginning and
end of the year 1,093,122,000 1,099122.000 81,086 81,085 81,486 £1,486

Each Unit in AGT represants an undivided interest in AGT, The rights and interests of Unitholdess ane
contained in the Trust Deed and relevant laws, and include the rights toc

{1 Receive income and other distnbutions attributable to the units held;
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18 UNITHOLDERS® FUNDS (CONTINUED)

{ii}  Participate in the termination of AGT by recelving a share of all net cash proceeds derived from the
realisation of the assets of AGT less any liabilites, in accondance with their proportionate interests
in AGT. Howevar, a Unitholder does not have the right 10 require any. assets {or part therecf) of
AGT be returnad to him;

(iily  Attend all Unitholders® maating. The Trustee-Manager may at any time convene a meeting of
Unitholders in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed;

(W) Vote at Unitholders” meetings. Every Unitholder has one vote for each unit of which he i the
Unitholder.

The restrictions of a Unitholder include the following:

{1} A Unitholder's right is limited to the right to require due administration of AGT in accordance
with the provisions of the Trust Deed; and

(iiy A Unitholder has no right 1o request to redeem his units while his units are listed on SGX-5T.

A Unitholder's Hability is limited to the amount paid or payable for any unit in AGT, The provisions for
the Trust Deed provide that no Unitholders will be personally liable to indemnify the Trustee-Manager
or any creditor of AGT in the event that the liabilities of AGT exceed its asseis.

19 NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

Non-controliing interest represents the infterests in the operating results and net assets of the SPC
attributable to the sharshodders of the TK Operator, in accordance with the TE Agreement

20 REVENUE
Group
2018 2017
JPY million  JPY million
Golf courss revenue 34,234 34,373
Restaurant revenue 12,499 12,725
Membarship reveniue 4,127 4,435

50,860 51,533

21 SELLING, GEMERAL AND ADMIMISTRATIVE EXPENSE

Group
2018 2017
JPY million  JPY million
Tax and levies® 1,380 1,432
Commission fees 2,321 2,136
Advertising expenss 775 T84
Oihars T6E B&T
5.242 5.219

Tan and bevees af JIFY 1,380 millian (2007 IPY 1437 il inchides propercty thx af By 1 260 milbon (20T JFY 1,293 millan)
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21 INTEREST EXPENSE AND OTHER FINANCE COSTS

Group
2018 2017

JPY million  JPY million

Interest expense - financial institutions 817 853

Interest expense - related party (Note 5 (i) 15 15
Interest expense - finance lease

- Related party (Note 5 (i) 26 43

~ Third parties a0 42

Amartisation of capitalised loan faciity fee 660 636

Amartisation of membership ceposits 18 B

Other finance costs 7 7

1603 1,658

23 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
The Group's operating subsidiary operales in Japan and is subject to income tax in lapan.

Income from the TE Business will be subject to withhalding tax in Japan which is levied on the amount of
TE distnibution paid from the SPC to AGT. The applicable withholding tax rate 5 20.42% (2017 20.42%).
Such withholding tax is assumed to constitute a foreign tax credit of AGT in Singapore, resulting in no
income tax expense at AGT since the income tax rate to be applied to AGT in Singapore s lower than
the withhaolding tax rate in Japan.

The amount of TK adistribution 5 assumed 1o be deductible from the taxable income of the SPC. Therefare,
only the residual taxable income of the SPC is subject 1o income 1ax in Japan. The corporate income lax
rate for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 is 34.60% (2017 34.60%)

(a) Income tax expense

Group
2018 2017
IPY million  JPY million
Forelgn withholding tax 977 1,444
Deferred tax (Nate 23 (c)) ~ (e41) (543}
Total income tax expanse 336 B80T
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23 INCOME TaAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

{b) Reconciliation of income tax provision and the income tax computed at the tax rate

prevailing
Group
2018 2017
JPY millien  1PY milllan

Profit before income tax 4,468 4,914
Tax calculated at Singapore tax rate of 17% 760 B35
Income not subject to fax (593) {597
Foreign tax credit claimed (412) {414)
Effect of (non-taxakble income), non-deductible expense in

determining taxable prafit [291) (284)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiary operating in other

jurisdiction (105) {183)
Fareign withholding tax a7z 1,444
Tatal income 1ax expense 336 BO1

{c) Deferred tax

The tax effects of temporary differences that gve nse to deferred tax liabilities as at 31 March
2018 are as follows:

Group
Golf course
assels Others Total
JPY milllion  JPY milllon  JPY milllon

Deferred tax Assets
Az at 31 March 2016 = X =
As at 31 March 2017 - 5 "

Recognised in profit or loss (Mote 23{all 54 - 59
As at 31 March 2018 549 - L8
Dafarred tax liabilities

As at 31 March 2016 28,046 665 28,711
Recognised in profit or loss (Mote 23{al [426) 217} {643}
As at 31 March 2017 27,620 448 18,068
Recognised in profit or loss (Mote 23(a)) [328) (254 {582)
As at 31 March 2018 27,292 194 27 486
Net defarred tax liabilities 21,233 194 27,427

As at acguisition date, the Group recognised a deferred fax liability im relation to the taxable
tempaorary difference, between the camying amount and the tax basis of golf course assets
arising from the acquisition of TK Interest, Such deferred tax liability is measared based on an
undiscounted basis at the enacted tax rate of 34.60% applicable to the SPC. SPC will be subject
to additional income tax in lapan in the event that SPC retains future income o fund future tax
payment
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24  PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Profit for the year has been arrived at alter charging/{crediting):

Group
2018 2017
JPY million  JPY milllon
Depreclation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,146 3,246
Amartisation of intangible assets 15 [
Amartisation of ather finance costs 7 7
Total depreciation and amortisation expense ) 3,168 3,259
Audit fees 42 52
Non audit fees 14 T
Interest income (1) {2y
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 104 141
Gain on forfeiture of membership deposits {26} (23)
Impalrment of property, plant and eguiprment 1,720 1,499
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 25 15

25  EARNINGS PER UNIT

The calculation of earnings per wnit i based on profit attributable 10 Unitholders of JPY 4,095 million
{2017 JPY 4,000 million) for the year and 1,099, 122,000 units (2017: 1,099,122,000 units) in issue

26  SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the business of owning, oparating and maintaining golf courses and
golf course related assets in Japan and thenefore Trustee-Manager considers that the Group operates
a5 one single business and geographical segment. Ne single customers contributed 10% or more to the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017

27  OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessae
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense were as follows:
Fayment recognised as an expense

Group
2018 2017
JBY million  JPY million

Minimum lease payments to

- Spansar (Note 5 (ii}) s 78
— Third parties 1,957 1,944
1.995 2,022
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OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Men-cancellable aperating lease commitmants
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for its land and certain equipment.

Leases for its land are initially negotiated for a term of 20 years and subsequently, the lease terms are
renewed based on the same conditions of the criginal lease agreements as long as the Group continues to
renew the leases, There are no terms or canditions in the lease agreements in relation to the termination
of the lease agreements during the lease terms. The Trustee-Manager considers the land lease contracts
to be cancellable as the Group as lessee has the option and the ability to terminate these contracts
during the lease term with no notice persod required and without penalty, Accordingly, the operating
lease commitment refating 1o lease of land Is not disclosed in the financial staternents

The lease for cerlain eguipment ks negotiated for one year and renewed on an annual basis. The rental
has been prepaid in full fior the bease term with no cperating lease commitment oulstanding as at
31 March 2018 and 2017,

DISTRIBUTIONS

Group and AGT
018 2017
JFY million  JPY million
Distribution of 3.59 Singapore cents per unit (2017: 4,31 cents) for the
perod from 1 October 2016 to 31 March 2017 (2017 1 Dotober 2015
1o 31 March 2015] 3,184 3,798

Distribution of 1.65 Singapore cents per unit (2017; 2.45 cents) far the
penod from 1 April 2017 to 30 September 2017 (2017 1 Apnl 2016

1o 30 Seplember 2016) 1,512 2,033
Dastribution paid 4,696 5,831

In respact of the current period from 1 October 2017 to 31 Mardh 2018, a distnbution of 2.20 Singapore cents
per unit or 5GD 242 milion (aquivalent to IPY 1,961 million} was paid out 1o Unitholders on 21 June 2018

These financial statements do not reflect the distnbution for the half year period from 1 Octobar 2017

o 31 March 2018, which will be accounted for in total equity as an aporopriation of retained earnings
in the year ending 31 March 2019
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 March 2018

HEW OR REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

Below are the mandatory standards, amendmaenis and interpretations 1o existing standards that have
been published, and are relevant for the Group's accounting periods beginring on or after 1 April 2018
and which the Group has not early adopted

* IFRS 9 Financlal instruments (cffective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)

IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 Financial mstruments. Recognition and Measurement and its relevant
interpretations

IFRS 9 retains the mixed measurement model and establishes three primary measurament
categaries for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through Other Comprehensive Income
(OCI1) and fair walue through profit or loss, The basis of classification depends on the entity's
business model and the confractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Investments
In equity Instruments are required to be measured at fair value through prafit or loss with the
irrevocabie option at inception to present changes in fair value in OCIHIRVOCH). Gains and losses
realised on the sale of financial assets at FVOCI are not transterred to profit or loss on sale but
reclassified from the FYOCI reserve to retained profits,

Under IFRS 9, there were no changes to the classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilites sxcept for the recognition of fair changes arising from changes in own credit
risk, For liabilities designed at fair value through profit or loss, such changes are recognisad in GCl

IFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for hedge eifectiveness by replacing the bright line hedge
effectiveness tests. It requires an economic relationship between the hedged item and hedging
instrument and for the "hedged ratia’ to be the same as the one management actually use for
risk management purposes.

There & also now a new expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment
model used in 145 39 1t applies to financial assets classified at amortised cost, debt instruments
measured at fair value through OCI, contract assets under IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, kease receivables, loan commitments and certain financial guarantee conftracts.

Tha new standard also introduces expanded disclosure requirements and changes in presentation.
The Group plans to adoapt the new IFRS retrospectively from 1 Apnl 2018 in line with the tramsition
provisions permitted under the standard. Comparatives for the financal year endad 21 March 2018
will not be restated and the Group will recognise any difference between the carrying amounts as
at 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 in the consolidated statement of changes n equity.

The fallowing financlal assets will be subject to the expected credit losses impakment under IFRS 9:

. Trade and other receivables

The Group does not sxpect a material impact on the provision for impairment of the above
financial assets
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29  NEW OR REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS (CONTINUED)

* IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers (effective for annual periods beginning on of
after 1 January 2018}

IFRS 15 replaces 1A 11 Construction contracts, 1AS 1B Revenue, and related interpretations

Revenue & recognised when a customer oblains control of a good or service, A customer obtabns
control when it has the ability to direct the use of and obtain the benefits from the good or
service, The care principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognises revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects 1o be entitled in exchange for those goods oF serices. An entity recogrises
revenue in accordance with that core principle by applying the following steps

. Step 10 antify the contract(s) with a customer

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

. Step 3: Determing the transaction prica

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price fo the perfarmance abligations in the contract

- Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance ahligation

IFRS 15 also includes a cohesive set of disclosure requirements that will result i an entity providing

users of financial statements with comprehensive Information about the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arsing from the entity's contracts with customers.

The Group does not anticipate that the adoption of this new IFRS would have a material impact
on the Group's financial statements

. IFRS 16 Leases (effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2019}
IFRS 16 will result in amost all leases being recognised on the balance sheet, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right ta
use the keased item) and a financial liability 1o pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are

shart-term and lew-value leases. The accounting for kessors will not change ssgnificantiy

Some of the commitments may be covered by the exception for short-term and low-value leases
and some commitments may relate to arrangements that will not qualify as leases under IFRS 16.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure requirements and changes in presentation.
The Group plans to adopt the new accownting standard retrospectively on 1 April 2019 and in
line with the transition provisions permitted under the standard, the curmulative effect of inital
apphcation will be recognized as an adjustment to the opening retained profit as at 1 April 2019
The Group has yel to determing 1o what extent the commitments as at the reporting date will
result in the recognition of an asset and a liabifity for future payments and how this will affect
the Group's total return and classification of cash flows.

30  AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were authorised for kssue in acoordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors of the Trustee-Manager Accordia Golf Trust on 25 June 2018
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2018 31
969,204,203 78,525
9,252,706 750
959,951,498 77,775
1,099,122,000
0.87 70
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CDP CDP
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€))
2017 4 1 2018 3 31
2018 3 31

2018 3 31 2017 3 31

4 61,872 41,987
61,872 41,987

5 36,439 54,370
6 1,321,229 1,357,603
107,179 81,335

7 3,945,337 3,521,254
5,410,184 5,014,562
5,472,056 5,056,549

8 625,000 625,000
4,514,094 4,151,900

8 (31,587) (11,244)
5,107,507 4,765,656

9 4,236 6,221
4,236 6,221

10 326,452 262,612
33,861 22,060

360,313 284,672

364,549 290,893

5,472,056 5,056,549
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2017 4 1 2018 3 31
2017 4 1 2016 4 1

2018 3 31 2017 3 31

11 3,011,325 3,155,705
464 4,317
(1,942,369) (2,112,804)
(179,752) (204,380)
- (18,672)
(23,191) (37,527)
(152,940) (145,822)
(109,455) (90,715)
(253,541) (202,530)

350,541 347,572

12 37,378 39,220
13 387,919 386,792
14 (25,725) (25,397)
362,194 361,395
(20,343) (11,244)
(20,343) (11,244)

341,851 350,151
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2017 4 1 2018 3 31

2017 4 1 2018 3 31

2016 4 1 625,000 3,790,505 - 4,415,505
- 361,395 - 361,395
- - (11,244) (11,244)
- - (11,244) (11,244)
- 361,395 (11,244) 350,151

2017 3 31 625,000 4,151,900 (11,244) 4,765,656

2017 4 1 625,000 4,151,900 (11,244) 4,765,656
- 362,194 - 361,194
- - (20,343) (20,343)
- - (20,343) (20,343)
- 362,194 (20,343) 341,851

2018 3 31 625,000 4,514,094 (31,587) 5,107,507
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2017 4 1 2018 3 31
2017 4 1 2016 4 1
2018 3 31 2017 3 31

387,919 386,792
20,895 24,077
14,532 -
(34,242) (35,479)

389,104 375,390
25,379 (8,241)
(25,844) (4,114)
63,840 82,467
(2,412) (65,614)

450,067 379,888
(15,909) (33,775)

434,158 346,113
45,237 18,278

(55,312) (7,968)

- (500,000)
(10,075) (489,690)
424,083 (143,577)
3,021,254 3,164,831
7 3,445,337 3,021,254
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25

2017 4 1

2018 3 31

80

068898 80 Robinson Road, 22-03A, Singapore 068898
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2.4

FRS

17
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3.14

2017 4 1

IFRS
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2018

FRS15

FRS115

FRS115

FRS115 FRS18
FRS11 INT FRS113

INT
FRS115 INT
FRS118 INT
FRS31

FRS115 2018

FRS115
2018 3
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2019
FRS 116
FRS116
15
12
%

FRS116 FRS17 73

FRS17

FRS116
2020 3
FRS116 2019 3
FRS17 FRS 104

FRS115

FRS116 2019

FRS127

FRS15
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4
2016 4 1 26,860 8,916 56,497 92,273
7,968 - - 7,968
2017 3 31 34,828 8,916 56,497 100,241
- - 55,312 55,312
- - (56,497) (56,497)
2018 3 31 34,828 8,916 55,312 99,056
2016 4 1 13,430 1,381 19,366 34,177
9,806 2,972 11,299 24,077
2017 3 31 23,236 4,353 30,665 58,254
7,132 2,463 11,300 20,895
- - (41,965) (41,965)
2018 3 31 30,638 6,816 - 37,184
2016 4 1 13,430 7,535 37,131 58,096
2017 3 31 11,592 4,563 25,832 41,987
2018 3 31 4,460 2,100 55,312 61,872
5
2018 3 31 2017 3 31
36,439 54,370
2018 3 31 2017 3 31
AGT
630,076 651,064
70,481 -
AGT 521,317 550,008
91,349 137,677
6,206 17,201
1,800 1,653
1,321,229 1,357,603
AGT
17
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2018 3 31 2017 3 31
1,364,752 974,415
2,580,585 2,546,839
3,945,337 3,521,254
(500,000) (500,000)
3,445,337 3,021,254

12 0.66 1.80 2017 3
500,000 2017 3

2018 3 31 2017 3 31
625,000 625,000
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2017 3 31

7,139

(918)

2018 3 31
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660

6,221

9
2016 4 1

7,258
(1,697)
5,561

10

11

12

2018 3 31

2017 3 31

2017 4 1
2018 3 31

3,011,325

2017 3 31

2017 4 1
2018 3 31

2017 3 31
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13
2017 4 1 2016 4 1
2018 3 31 2017 3 31
1,810,216 1,924,673
48,077 49,744
84,076 138,387
14
2017 4 1 2016 4 1
2018 3 31 2017 3 31
33,201 24,737
(5,491) -
27,710 24,737
(1,985) 660
25,725 25,397
387,919 386,792
17% 65,946 65,755
(2017 217%)
3,620 5,391
(5.491) -
- (14,309)
(29,692) (25,925)
(8,300) (5,515)
(358) -
25,725 25,397
15
2018 3 31 2017 3 31
132,888 155,188
132,888 186,657
265,776 341,845
2016 6
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2017 4 1 2016 4 1
2018 3 31 2017 3 31
868,044 966,221

2017 4 1 2017 4 1
2018 3 31 2017 3 31
(3,011,325) (3,155,705)
9,505 81,629
- 22,605
148,722 142,608
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2018 3 31 3,945,337 (2017 3
- 3,521,524 )
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2018 3 31
326,452 (326,452) (326,452)
36,439
C )
- (1,231,276) (1,231,276)
- 1,267,715 1,267,715
36,439 36,439 36,439
362,801 (290,013) (290,013)
2017 3 31
262,612 (262,612) (262,612)
54,370
C )
- (1,163,244) (1,163,244)
- 1,217,614 1,217,614
54,370 54,370 54,370
316,981 (208,241) (208,241)
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2018 3 31 2017 3 31
139,700 137,409
(48,313) (57,677)

91,387 79,732

10 10
(9,139) 9,139

10 10
(7,973) 7,973
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2
2018 3 31
6 1,321,229 - 1,321,229
7 3,945,337 - 3,945,337
5,266,566 . 5,266,566
5 - 36,439 36,439
10 (298,056) - (298,056)
2017 3 31
6 1,357,603 - 1,357,603
7 3,521,254 - 3,521,254
4,878,957 - 4,878,957
5 - 54,370 54,370
10 (234,141) - (234,141)
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Accordin Grolf Trast Management Pre. Lol
Firancind sirfewerais
Year ended 31 March 2005

Statement of financial position
As at 31 March 2018

Nole 2018 207

5 5

Assets
Plant and equipment 4 6l 872 41 987
Mon-current assets 61,872 41 987
Financial derivatives 5 36,430 54,370
Trade and other receivables f 1,321,229 1,357 6003
Prepaymenis 107,179 #1,335
Cash and cash equivalents 7 3945317 3,521,254
Current assets 5410184 5014562
Total asset 5472 056 5056549
Equity
Share capital 8 25 (00 G5 000
Accumulated profits 4. 514,004 4,151 900
Hedging rescrve g _GLIET)  (11.244)
Total equity 5007507 4,765 656
Liabilities
Defermed tax linbilities 9 4,230 6,221
Man-current liabilities 4 236 6,221
Trade and other payables {0 326,452 262612
Cuwreni fax payable 33,861 22 00
Current liahilities 3313 284672
Total liabilities 364,549 201,893
Total equity and liabilities 5472056 5 056,549

The accompanying notes form an integral pan of these fomancial statements.

F5l
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Accordin Grolf Trast Management Pre. Lol
Firancind siehemeniy
Year ended 3] March 2015

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Year ended 31 March 2018

Note 2018 2017
5 5
Revenue 11 3011325 3,155,708
Other income A 4317
Staff costs (1942368 (2,112.5804)
Professional fees {179, 752) (204 380
Human resouree and administrative service fees - {18 672)
Investor relation expenscs (23,191) (37.527)
Operating lease expenses (152 54401 (145.822)
Travelling expenscs {100 4535) {MLT15)
Other expenses (253.541) (2025300
Results from operating activities 350,541 347,572
Finance income 12 37.378 39220
Profit before tax 13 IZ7.910 386,792
Tax expense |4 (25,725} (25,397)
Profit for the vear 362194 361,395
Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified
subseguently to profit or loss

Changes in fair value of financial hedges (20343} (11.244)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax {23 343) (11, 244)
Total comprehensive income for the year 4] 851 350151

The accompanying notes form an integral par of these [mancial stalements.

F52
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Accordio Golf Fract Managemient Pre. Ll
Fimaneind dafemaeniy
Year ended 31 March 2005

Share  Accumulated  Hedging Taotal
capital profits TESCTVe cquity
5 5 5 5

At | Aprl 20016 625,000 3,700,505 = 4415505
Total comprehensive income

for the vear
[Profit for the vear 361,395 361,395
Mher comprehensive income
Effective portion of changes in

fair value of financial hedges - - (11,244) (11,2445
Taotal other comprehensive

income - - (11.244) (11,244
Total comprehensive income

for the vear - 361,395 (11.244) 350,151
At 31 March 2007 625,000 4,151,900 (11,244) 4,765,656
At 1 Apnl 2017 625,000 4,151,500 (11.244) 4765656
Total comprehensive income

for the vear
{Profit for the year - 362 194 - 362,194
Other comprehensive income
Effective portion of changes in

fair value of financial hedges - — (20, 343) (210,343)
Total other comprehensive
income - - (20.343) 20,343)
Total comprehensive income

for the year = 362, 194 (201,343) 341,851
At 31 March 2008 H23 06} 4,514,094 (31.587) 5107507

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these [imncial statememts.
FS3
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Statenent of cash Mows
Year ended 31 March 2018

Cash Mows from operating activitics
Profit before 1ax

Adjustments for:

Diepreciation of plant and cquipment
Plant and equipment writien-ofl
Interest income

Changes in:

— trade and other receivables

— prepayments

~ trade and other payables

~ finameial derivatives

Cash generated from operations

Tax paid

Met cash Mows from aperaling activities

Cash Mows from investing activities

Interest received

Purchasc of plant and equipment

Fixed deposit pledged with a financial institution
Met cash wied in investing activities

Met increase/{deerease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivaleni ai | Apnl
Cash and cash cquivalents at 31 March

The accompanying notes form an integral pan of these fomancial statements.
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Accordin Grolf Trast Management Pre. Lol
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MNotes to the financial statements
These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements were authonsed for 1ssue by the Board of Dhrectors on 25 Junc 2018

Domicile and activities

Accordia Goll Trust Management Ple. Lid (the "Company™) is a company incorporated in
Singapore. The address of the Company’s registered office is at 80 Robinson Road, #22-03A,
Singapare OHESGHE

The principal activity of the Company is that of a trustce-manager for Accordia Golf Trust
{business trust),

The Company is a joint venture between Accordia Golf Co., Lid. and Daiwa Real Estate Asset
Management Co. Lid.. Both companies ane incorporated in Japan.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Singapore Financial
Reparting Standards (FRS).

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, cxcept as otherwisc
desenbed i the accounting policies set oul below,

Functional and presentation currency

These fimancial statements are presented n is Singapore dollars, which is the Company’s
functional currency.  All financial information presented in Singapore dollars, unless otherwise
stated.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparanon of the financial statements in conformity with FRSs requires management io
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of aceounting policics
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Estimates and underying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 1o accounling

cstimanes are recognised in the perod in which the estimare is revised and in any funure periods
affected.

F&5
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There are no significant areas of critical judgements in the application of accounting policics that
have significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements or assumptions and
estimation unceriaintics that have a significant risk of resalting in a material adjustment within
the next financial vear,

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial asscts and liabilines.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or linbility, the Company uses market ohservable datn
as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarch based
on the inputs used in the valuations technigues as follows:

o Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or linbilities;

o Level 20 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or linbility, either direetly (i.c., as prices) or indireetly (i, derived from prices):
and

o Level 30 Inputs for ihe assct or liability that are not based on observable and market daia
{unobscrvahle market daia),

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hicrarchy, then the fair valoe measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant (o the entine
measurement (with Level 3 being the lowesit).

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hicrarchy as of the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in note 17
= Valuation of financial instruments

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policics set out below have been applicd consistenily to all periods presented in
these financial statements,

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional curmeney of the Company at
exchange rates at the rates of the transactions, Monctary asscts and liahilitics denominated in
foreign currencies al the reporting date are translated (o the functional currency af the exchange
rate at that date. The forcign currency gain or 10ss on monetary items is the differcnce between
amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the vear, adjusted for effective
interest and payments during the vear, and the amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the
exchange rate at the end of the vear,

MNon-monctary asscls and habihnes denominated i forcign currencics that are measurcd an far
value are translated to the functional currency ai the exchange rate at the date that the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items in a forcign currency that are measured in terms of historical
cost are translated using the exchange rate at the due of the ransaction. Foreign curmrency
differences arising on translation are recognised in profit or loss,
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Financial instruments

Finmmcial assers

Initiad recognition ard measurement

Financial assets are recognised when, only when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets

at imatial recognition.

When financial assets arc recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
financial asscts not at fir value through profic of loss, direetly anributable tmnsaction costs.

Suehseginent measiiFement

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the comractual cash flow characteristics of the asset.  The Company
classifies debt instruments info amortised cost,

Amartised cost

Financial assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial
asscts are measured at amontised cost using the effective interest methoed, less impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the assets are derecogmised or impaired, and
through amortisation process,

Amortised cost comprise irade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and fixed deposit placed with
financial institutions, that are subject to an insignificant risk 1o changes in their fair value,

Tiiparirrivent

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses (*ECL' ) associaed
with its deb instrument assets carried at amortizsed cost. For rade receivables only, the Company
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to the lifenme expected credit losses
Derecognition

A financinl assct is derccogmised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset
has expired. On derccognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration recetved and any cumulative gam or loess that
had been recogmised in other comprehensive income 15 recognised in profit or loss.

Financial fabilities

Initial recognition ard measurement

Financial liabilitics are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes 2 panty 10 the

contractual provisions of the financial instrument, The Company determines the classification of
its financial liabilites ar inital recognition.

F&7
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All financial liabilitics are recogniscd initially at fair valug plus, in the ease of financial liabilitics
not at fair value through profit or loss, dircetly attributable transaction costs.

Nuhseguent neastremend

Adier ininal recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured ai amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Gains and lesses are recopnised in profit or loss when the
lrabilines are derccognised, and through the amortisation process.

Derecognition

A financial hability is derccognised when the obligation under the lighility is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability s replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liahility are substantially
mediticd, such an cxchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recopnition of a new liability and the difference in the respective carming amournils ane
recogniscd in profit or loss,

Offsetting of financial instroments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount 15 presented in the balance
sheets, when and only when, there is a currently enforceable legal rght o set off the recognised
amounts and there 15 an miention to setile on a net basis, or to realise the asscts and scitle the
lrabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exisis individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Company determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in o Company
of financial asscts with similar credit risk chamctenistics and collectively assesses them for
irpairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impaimmeint, and for which an impairment
loss is or continues 1o be recognised, are not included in 2 collective assessment of impairment.
When the asset becomes uncollectible, the carryving amount of impaired financial asset s reduced
directly or if an amount was charged o the allowance account, the amounts charged © the
allowance account arc written off against the carrying value of the financial assct

To determing whether there 15 ebjecnve evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has
been ncurred, the Company considers factors such as the probabality of insolvency or significant
financial difficultics of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.

Under the new approach, impairment is made on the expected onedit losses, which are the present
value of the cash shortfalls over the expected life of the financial assets.

Prade receivebles

The Company measures the loss allowance for its trade receivables at an smount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses,

Fs8
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(dhrer fimancial assets

Accordingly, other financial assets are classificd as measured at amortised cost less eapected
impairment losses. The Company’s other financial assets have contractual cash flows that are
solely principal, and interest and the business model's objective is 1o hold these assets o collect
contractual cash flows. Impairment allowances for other financial assets are determined based
on the 1 2-month expected credit loss model.

Dertvative financial instruments, including hedge accounting

Derivative financial instruments include forward cumrency contracts. These are used 1o manage
the Company’s exposure to risks asseciated with foreign cumency,

Denvative financial instiuments are imtially recopnised at fair value on the date on which a
denvative contragt is entered into and are subsequently remeasurcd at fair value.  Denivative
financial instruments are carmed as asscts when the fair value is positive and as habihiies when
the fair valee is negative.

The fair value of forward currency contracts and interest rate derivatives are calculated by
reference to curment forward cxchange rates and interest mtes respectively fior contracts with
similar maturity profiles,

Hedge accounting

The Company apphes hedge accounting for certam hedgmng relationships which qualify for hedge
accounting, For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as cash Nlow hedges when
hedging exposure (o vanability 1 cash flows that is cither attributable w0 a pamicular sk
associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign curmency risk in an wnrecognised finm commitment

Cash fow hedpes

For cach cash flow hedge relationship, the effective part of any gain of loss on the denvative
financial instrument is recogniscd directly in other comprehensive income,  Amounts recognised
a5 other comprehensive meome are transferred o profit or loss when the hedged transaction
affects profit or loss. The ineffective part of any gain or loss is recogmised immediately in the
Consolidated Profit and Loss Accounts at the time hedpe effectivencss is tested,

When a cash Mow hedge is discontinued, any cumulative gain or loss previously recogmised in
other comprehensive income will remain in the cash flow hedge reserve until the future cash flows
occur. [Fthe hedged future cash flows no longer expected to ocour, the net cumulative gam or
loss is immedianely reclassified 1o profit or loss.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the ssuce of
ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

219/318



X

EDINETOOOO

Oo0ooooooooobo0oDo0obDo0ooDo0oooo0o0bDo0g0oOoo(Ese783)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Aceordin Golf Fract Managemient Pre. Lid.
Financiad ity
Year ended 31 March 2005

Plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Items of plant and equipment are measured at cost less sccumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses,

Cost includes expenditure that 15 dircetly attnbutable to the scquisition of the assct. Purchased
sefiware that is integral to the functienality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that
cquipmenl

When parts of an item of plant and cquipment have different wseful lives, they are accounted for
a5 scparate ilems (major components) of plant and cquipment.

The gaim or loss on disposal of an item of plant and equipment is determined by comparing the
procceds from disposal with the carrying amount of plant and equipment, and 15 recognised net
within other expenses in profit or loss,

Subxeguent coses

I'he cost of replacing a component of an item of plant and equipmient 15 recognised i the carmyimg
amount of the swem f it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the
component will flow to the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The earrying amount
of the replaced compenent is dercoognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of plant and
equipmicnt are recogmsed i prodin or loss as ncured.

Depreciation
Depreciation is based on the cost of an assct less its residual value, Significant components of
individual assets are assessed and if a component has a useful life that s different from the

remaxinder of that asset, that component is depreciated separately,

Deprecianon is recopnised a8 an expense in profit of loss on a stesight-lise basis over the
cstimared usclul lives of cach component of an item of plant and cquipment.

Depreciation 18 recopnmized from the date that the plant and equipment are installed and are ready
fior use.

The estimated wseful lives for the current and comparative yvears are as follows:

Computers - 3 years
Office cquipment - 3 years
Furniture and fittings = 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residunl values are reviewed ot the end of each reporting
penod and adjusted if appropriate.
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Impairment
Non=financial asseis

I'he carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date
to determing whether there is any indication of impairment. 1f any such indicanion ¢xists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.  An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of on asset or its related cash-gencrating umit {OGU) exceeds its cstimated recoverable
ameunt.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs o sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the ime
value of money and the risks specilic o the asset or CGLL For the purpose of impairmenl (esin g,
assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of asscrs that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash nflows of
ather assets or CGUs,

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respeet of
CGlis are allocated to reduce the camying amownts of the other assets in the CGLU (group of
CGLUsh on a pro rafa basis.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has deercased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a change 1 the estimates used to determune the recovemble amount  An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not excecd the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of deprecianon or amortisation, i 0o imparment
loss had been recognised.

Employee benefits
Befined contribution plamns

A defined contribution plan is a post=mployment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions (o defined contribution pension plans are recopnised as
an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which related services arg
rendered by employees,

Short-term employes benefirs

Short-term cmplovee benefit obligations are measurcd on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid
under short-term cash bonus if the Company has a present Legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past serviee provided by the employee, and the obliganon can be
estimated reliably.
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2.9 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obliganion as a result of & past event,
it is probable that an outflow of cconomic resources will be required o seitle the obligation and
the amount of the obligation can be estimated relinbly.

.10 Revenue recognition

Management fee

Management fee is derived from the management of the business trust and comprises base foe
and performance fee which are respectively determined based on the value of the total assets of
the busincas trust on a consolidated basis, and the adjusted nct operating income of the
investments of business trust. Management fee 15 recognised on an acerual basis.

Aeqguisition, divestment and one-tine infifal vetup fee

Acquisition and divestment fees relate to fees carned in relation 1o the acquisition and divestment
of assets by business trust. The acquisition and divestment fees are determined based om the value
of the assets acquired and divested and are recognised when the services have been rendered.

One<time initnal setup fee relates o acqusition fee for work done in connection with the
acquisition of the initial portfolio by business trust, The fee is recognised when the services have
been rendered,

An Finance income

Finance ncome comprises interest income on deposits placed with banks. Interest mcome 15
recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest method.

Forcign currency gains and losses on financial assets and Goancial habilities are reported on a net
hasis as cither finance income or finance cost depending on whether forcign curmency movemenis
are in a net gain or net loss position.

L B Lease payvments

Pavments made under operating leases are recopnised in profit or loss on a straight=line basis over
the term of the lease,

313 Tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in
profit or loss excepd 10 the cxtent that it relates 1o wems recogmised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income,

Curreni iax is the expected 1ax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year,
using tax rates cnncted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years. The amount of the current tax payable or receivable is the
best estimate of the tax amount expected 1o be paid or received that reflects uncerainty related o
inceme taxes, if any.
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Deforred tax 15 recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
asscts and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Refermed tax is not recognised for temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or
liahilitics in a transaction that 15 nod a business combination and that affects neither accountig
nor taxable profits or loss.

Deferned tax 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied 1o temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offser if there is a legally enforceable right to offsct current
tax liabilitics and asscts and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxahble entity and the Company intends to setle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or
their tax asseis and liahilitics will be realised simultancously,

A deferred tax asset is recogmised for unused tax losses, tax eredits and deductible temporary
differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at cach reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

In determtining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Company takes into account the impact
of uncertain ax positions and whether addinonal taxes and interest may be due. The Company
belicves that its accruals for tax labilities are adequate for all open tax years based on iis
assessment of many facters including interpretations of tax law and proor experience.  This
assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may invelve a series of judgements about
future cvents, MNew information may bocome available that causcs the Company to change its
Judgement regarding the adequacy of existing tax habilities. Such changes to ax Labihities will
impaet @ expense in the period that such a determination is made,

ENE) New standards and interpretations not adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are cffective for annual periods
beginning afier 1 Apal 2017 and earlier application 15 permitted; however, the Company has not
carly applicd the following new or amended standards in preparing these statements,

For those new standards and amendments 1o standards that are expected w have an effect on the
financial statements of the Company in future financial peniods, the Company has to asscss the
transition options and the potential mpact on its finaneial statements, and to implement these
standards. Management provides updates 10 the Board of Dircctors on the progress of
implementing these standards. These updates cover project implementation status, key reporting
and business nsks and the mplementation approach. The Company docs not plan to adopt these
standards carly.
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Patential impact on the financial statements

FRS 115 Revenne from Confracts with
Customers

FRS 115 cstablishes a  comprehensive
framework for determining whether, how
much and when revenue 15 recognised. 1t also
introduces new cost guidance which requires
certain costs of obtaining and  fulfilling
contracts to be recogmised as separate assets
when specified enfena are met.

When effective, FRS 115 replaces existing
revenue recognition guidance. including FRS
18 Revenwe, FRS 11 Construction Contracis,
INT FRS 113 Custosrer  Lovalty
FPragrammes, INT FRS 113 Agreemenis for
the Constrsetion of Real Extare, INT FRS
V18 Fransfers of Asseis from Customiers and
INT FRS 31 Revenne — Barier Transactions
Tnvalving Advertising Services,

FRS 115 is ecffcciive for annual periods
beginning on or afier 1 January 2008, with
carly adoption permitted. FRS 115 offers a
range of transition options including full
retrospechive adoption where an enlity can
choose to apply the standard 1o its historical
transactions and retrospectively adjust cach
compirative period presented in s 2008
financial statements, When applying the full
retrospective method, an entity may also elect
1o use 3 serics of practical expedienis to ease
transigien.

Duning 2018, the Company has performed an
nitial  assessment of the mpact on  the
Company’s financial staements. Overall, the
Company docs not expect a significant impact
on its financial statements for the effect of
applving the requirements of FRS 1135,
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Patential impact on the financial statements

FRS 116 Leases

FRS 1 16 eliminates the lessee’s classification
of leases as either operating leases or finance
leases and introduces a  simple  lessee
accounting model, Applving the new model,
2 lessee is required to recognise nght-of-use
(ROLN asscts and lease habilitics for all
leases with a werm of more than 12 months,
unless the underdying assct is of low value,

FRS 116 substantially carries forward the
lessor accounting requirements in FRS 17
Leases, Accordingly, a lessor comtinues o
classify s leascs as operating leascs or
finance leases, and 10 account for these two
tvpes of leases using the FRS 17 operating
lease and finance lease accounting models
respectively. However, FRS 116 requires
more extensive disclosures to be provided by
a lessor,

When effective, FRS 116 replaces existing
lease accounting guidance, including FRS 17,
INT FRS 104 Derermining whether an
Arrangement eontaing a Lease; INT FRS 15
Operating Leaves— fncentives, and INT FRS
27 Fvirlnating the Substance of Transaotiong
Favalving the Legal Form of a fease

FRS 116 is cffcctive for annual perinds
beginming on or after | Januwary 2018, with
carly adoption permitted if FRS 115 is also
applicd

The Company has performed @ preliminary
high-level assessment of the new standard on
ils existing operating 1case amrangemenis as a
lessee (refer to note 15). Based on the
preliminary assessment, the Company expects
these operating leases to be recogmised as ROU
asscts with corresponding [case labilitics under
the new standard. The operating lease
commitments on an undiscounted basis amount
to approximately 5% of the total asscts and
T3% of wotal liabilities. Assuming no additional
new operating leases in future years until the
effecove date, the Company expecis the
amount of ROL asset and lease liability o be
lower due to discounting and as the lease terms
run down.

The Company plans to adopt the standard when
it becomes effective in 2019, The Company
will perform a detailed analysis of the standard,
including the transition options and practical
expedients in 2018,
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Cost

A Apal 2006
Additions

At 3] March 2007
Additions
Wrtten-off

At 31 March 2008

Accumilated depreciation
At | Apail 20016
Depreciation charge

for the year
At 3] March 2007
Depreciation charge

for the year
Witten-ofT
At 3] March 2018

Carrving amounis
ALl Aprl 2006

At 31 March 2007
At 31 March 2018

Financial derivatives
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Office Furniture
Computers  cquipment  amd fittings Total
5 5 5 5
26,860 LT 56,497 92,273
7,968 - - T.thaR
ER R 2 ROl 56,047 101,241
- - 5312 53312
- - (56.4497) (56.497)
34828 B 55312 056
13.430 1,381 19,366 34,177
9,806 2972 11,299 24.077
23,236 4,353 30,6635 58,254
7132 2463 11,300 20,593
= - (41.965) (41.965)
30,368 H.X 16 - 37,184
13,430 7.535 37.131 58040
11,392 4,563 23,832 41 987
4,460 2,100 53,312 1 872
2018 m7
5 5
36430 34570

Forward exchange contracts used for hedging

The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge s revenue which were computed based

on Japanese Yen,

Trade and other receivables

Amount dug from Accordia Golf Trust

= Trade
MNon trade

Accrued revenue from Accordia Golf Trust

Deposits
Acerued interest ingome
Oithers
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2018 7
5 5
630,076 651 064
Tir48]
521,317 S50,(H18
91,349 137.677
6206 17.201
I H0 1.653
[.32],229 | 357603
F516



EDINETOOOO
Oo0ooooooooobo0oDo0obDo0ooDo0oooo0o0bDo0g0oOoo(Ese783)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Accordin Grodf Truct Managemient Pre. Lod.
Fimaneinl sipfewsenty
Year ended 38 March 201X

Outstanding balances with Accordia Golf Trust was unsccurcd, interest-free and repayable in
demand. There is no allowance for doubtful debt arising from this outstanding balance.

The Company’s exposure to credit sk related for rade and other reccivables is disclosed in note
IT.

Cash and cash equivalents

2018 017
8 8

Cash and bank balances 1,364,752 T4 415
Fixed deposits placed with financial institutions ___ 250,585 2,546,839
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial

position 1945337 352124
Fixed deposit pledged with a financial institution { SER (WYY { 5000 (HDEH)
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash Nows 3445317 3N21.254

The fixed deposits placed with financial instituiions mature within the next 12 months and bear
interest rates of (0.66% to 1L.80% (2017 1LO8% to 1.80%) per annum, The fixed deposit of
S500,000 (2017: S500,000) is pledged with a lnancial institution [or foreign exchange forward
facility.

Share capital
2ms T
Mo. of shares  No. of shares
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares, with no par value:
At 1 Apnl and 31 March 625 (W) 25,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time 1o e, and
are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard
io the Company's residual assets.

Capital nrantagentent

The Board's poelicy 15 to maintain a sound capital position to suppon its business growth and
strategic investments,

There were no changes in the Company's approach to capital management duning the year. The
Company is not subject to extemally imposed capital requirements.

Hedping reserve

Hedging reserve records the portion of the fair valwe changes on financial dervatives that were
designated as hedging mstruments which were determined o be effective hedges

F517
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Accordio Grolf Trist Management Pre. Lol
Furanciol urhemweniv
Year ended 3 March 2005

Deferred tax liahilities

Movement in deferred tax liabilitics! {assets) of the Company during the vear is as follows:

Recognised Recognised
At in profit or Al in profit or At
142016 loss (note 14) I13200T  loss (note 14) 31/3/2018
b 5 5 % 5
PMlant and equipment 7258 {119y 7,139 (2.715) 4,424
Provisions {1.697) e (18 T30 (158)
5,361 it} 6,221 {1985 4.236
Trade and other payables
ms m7
5 5
Trade pavables 97,714 46,945
Amount due to related corporations (trade) 46,894 1096
Accrucd operating cxpenscs 153 45K HT 100
Goods and Services Tax payable 28356 28471
326,452 262612

The Company's exposure o currency and liquidity risks related to trade and other payables are
disclosed in nate 17,

Revenue
2018 017
s 5
Management foo 3,011,325 3,155,705
Finance income
018 2017
L1 %
Interest income 34,242 35479
Met exchange pnin 3136 1,741
37,378 3922
FS18
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Aceordio Golf Fruce Management Pre. Lnd
Fimancun dalemeniy
Year ended 3) March 2005

Profit before tax

The following items have been included in armiving at profit be fore tax:

2018 2017
5 5
Salaries and bonuscs | 810,216 1924 673
Contributions 1o defined contribution plans 45,077 49,744
(ther personngl cxpenses 44,076 138,387
Tax expense
2018 7
-7 5
Currenl lax expense
Current year 33,201 24,737
Owerprovision in prior vear (5.491) =
27.710 24.737
Deferved tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences [1,5985) il )
Total tax expense 25.725 25397
Reconciliation of effective fux rote
Profit before tax ELTRULY 386,792
Tax using the Singapore tax rate of 17% (2007; 17%) [ T (5 755
Mon-deductible expenses 3,620 5,391
Owerprovision in prior yoar (5,491) -
Tax cxempt ncome - {14 300
Tax incentive (29.607) (25925)
Tax rebate {8,300 {5.515)
Others {358) -
25,725 25397
Operating lease
Mon-cancellable operating lease rental is payable to a related company as follows:
2018 017
5 b3
Within onc vear 132 8RR 155,188
Berween one and five vears 132 883 186,657
265,776 341,845
FS19
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Aceordio Golf Fruce Management Pre. Lnd
Fimancun dalemeniy
Year ended 3) March 2005

The Company leases its office premise under operating lease with a related company. In June
2016, the Company has remewed the lease for a period of three vears with the related company.

Related parties

Key management personnel compensiaiion

Koy management personnel of the Company are those persons having authority and responsibility
for planming, directing and controlling the acuvines of the Company, directly or indirectly, The

directors of the Company are considered as key management personnel.

The key management personncl compensation, representing compensation o dircctors of the
Company, for the vear is as follows;

2018 m7
s s
Salaries and other shoni-term employee benefits Rl 044 966,221

(her related party fransactions

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the following were the significant
transactions between the Company and its related partics which were carried out at terms agreed
between the parties duning the financial year:

2018 017
5 5

Accordia Golf Trust
Management foe (3001,325)  (3,155,705)
Disbursement of expenses 95015 ®1.620
Related corporations
Human resource and administrabive service rendered - 22,605
Rental expense 148,722 142 608

Financial instruments

{hverview

The Company has exposure (o the following nsks from its use of financial mstrumenis:

«  credit risk

«  lugudity nsk

«  market risk

This note presents mformation about the Company’s exposure to cach of the above nisks, the

Company's objectives, policics and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the
Company s management of capial,

F520
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Avcordin Grolf Tract Managemient Pre. Ll
Fimanciol wiafemarniy
Year ended 38 March 200X

Risk management framework

The Board of Dirgetors has overall responsibility for the cstablishment and oversight of the
Company”s risk management framework,

The Company's nisk management policies are established to identsfy and analyse the nisks faced
by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor nsks and adherence
to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Company's activitics. The Company, through its training and
management standards and procedures, aims fo develop a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all emplovees understand their reles and obligations.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company 1f 2 customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fanls (o meet its contractual obhigations, and anses principally from the Company’s
receivables from customers,

At the reporting date, the Company’s prunary exposure (o credit risk anses through its receivables
from a related corporation, The camying amounts of financial assels in the siaement of financial
position represent the Company”™s maximum exposure to credit risk.

Impairment losses

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired mainly anse from creditworthy deblors
with good payment record with the Company., The Company believes that no impairment
allowanee 15 necessary 10 respect of reccivables not past duc. As at the reporing date, there are
no reccivables past due.

Caxl and cash equivalents

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of 53,945 337 (201 7: 83 521 524) as at 31 March
2018, which represents its maximum credit exposure on these assets. The cash and cash
cquivalents are held with bank and financial institutions which are regulated.

Liguidiny risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in mecting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilitigs that are seitled by delivening cash or another financial asset,

In the management of liguidity risks, the Company monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequaie by the management to finance the Company’'s operations and
mitigate the cffects of fluctuations in cash flow.

F521
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Aceordio Golf Fruct Management Pre. Lol
Fimancind siphomenis
Year enced 38 March 2005

The fallowing arc the contractual maturitics of financial liabilitics excluding the impact of netting

agrecments:
Cash Mows
Carrving  Contractual Within Within
amount cash flows 1 year 1 to § years
5 L3 5 s
31 March 2018
Mon-derivative linancial
linhilities
Trade and other payables 326,452 (326,452) (326,432) -
Derivative inancial
instruments
Forward exchange controcts
uscd for hedging
[ pross-settled): 36,439
— Dutflow - (1.231.276)  (1.2301.276) -
— Inflow - 1,267,715 1,267,715 -
36459 36,439 36,430
362 B9 (290,013} (290,00 3) =
31 March 2017
Mov=derivative linancial
liabilities
Trade and other payables 262612 (262.612) (262.612) -
Derivative financial
instruments
Forward exchange contracts
used for hedging
{wross-scitled) 34,370
— Outflow - (L163.244)  (1,163,244) -~
= Inflow " 1,217,614 1,217,614 -
£4370 54,370 54,370 =

316,981 (208241) (208241} =

The disclosure shows net cash flow amounts for derivatives that are cash sentled and gross cash
inflow and outflow amounts for dervatives that have simultancous gross cash settlement ez
forward exchonge contracts.

Market rixk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest
rates will affeet the Company”s income or the value of its holdings of financial insoruments. The

objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
aceeptable parameters, while optimising the return.

F522
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Avcordin Grolf Friut Managemient Pre. Lnd
Fimanciol spfemaeniy
Year ended 38 March 2015

Foreign errrency risk

The Company is exposed 10 currency risk on purchases and cash balances that are denominated
in Japanese yen (JPY),

The Company uscs derivative financial instruments to hedge iis currency nisk.
Management reviews penodically 1o ensure that the net exposure is kept at an acceptable level.

The Company's cxposure o forcign currency risk is as follows:

018 17
JPY JPY
5 5
Cash and cash equivalents 139,700 137 409
Trade and other payables (48,313) (37.677)
Met exposure 91387 79,732

Sensitiviey analysis

A strengthening of the SGD against the JPY at 31 March 2018 would have increased (decreased)
profit or loss by the amounts shown below, This analysis is based on foreign currency cxchange
rate variances that the Company considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting
perind. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rales, remain constant
and ignores any impact of forecasted purchases.

Profit or loss
10%s 1%
strengthenming  weakening
5 s

31 March 2018
JPY {9139} 9,139
31 March 2007
Iy (7.973) 7973

Aceonnting clussifications and fair values

The carrying amounts of finoncial assets and Habilities, which are not measured at fair value as
shown in the statement of financial position, are as fellows. Informatnion on fair value of fnancial
asscts and financial liahilitics are not disclosed when their carying amounts are reasonable
approximation of their fair values.

The carrying amounts of financial asscts and liabilitics with a maturity of less than onc year
Gncluding cash and cash equivalems, irade recevables and other payvables) approsamate their fair
values because of the shom period o maturity,

F523
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Accordin Golf Trast Management Pre. Lol
Firancind siefemeniy
Year ended 3] March 2005

The fair value of forward exchange contracts (Level 2 fair values) wsed for hedging is based on
markel comparison technique. The fair value are based on broker quotes. Similar contracts are
trade in an active market and the quotes reflect the actual transactions in similar instrument,

Fair value
through other Total
Amortised comprehensive  carryving

Mole cost mcome amount
5 5 s

31 March 2018
Financial assels nol measured

at fair value
Trade and other receivables ] 1,321,229 - 1,321,229
Cash and cash equivalenis T 3,945,337 - 3945337

5,266,566 = 3,260 566

Financial assets measured

at fair value
Forward exchange coniracis used

for hedging 5 - 36,439 36430
Financial liabilities not measured

at fair valie
Trade and other payvables * 0 {298 056) - {298 056)
31 March 2017
Financial assets not measured

al fair vilue
Trade and other receivables [ 1,357 603 1,357 6003
Cash and cash equivalents 7 3,521,284 - 3.5821.254

4 878,957 = 4 878957

Financial assets measured

af fair value
Forward exchange contracis uscd

for hedging 5 - 54,370 54,170
Financial liahilities not measured

al Fair value
Trade and other payables * 10 (234.141) — (234.141)

*  Esxclude Goods and Service Tax payable

F524
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€))
2016 4 1 2017 3 31
2017 3 31

2017 3 31 2016 3 31

4 41,987 58,096
41,987 58,096

5 54,370 -
6 1,357,603 1,332,161
81,335 77,221

7 3,521,254 3,164,831
5,014,562 4,574,213
5,056,549 4,632,309

8 625,000 625,000
4,151,900 3,790,505

8 (11,244) -
4,765,656 4,415,505

9 6,221 5,561
6,221 5,561

10 262,612 180,145
22,060 31,098

284,672 211,243

290,893 216,804

5,056,549 4,632,309
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2016 4 1 2017 3 31
2016 4 1 2015 4 1
2017 3 31 2016 3 31
3,155,705 2,884,932
4,317 8,040
(2,112,804) (1,911,284)
(204,380) (291,471)
(18,672) (28,975)
(37,527) (59,121)
(145,822) (146,921)
(90,715) (77,493)
(202,530) (219,057)
347,572 158,650
39,220 27,321
386,792 185,971
(25,397) (4,224)
361,395 181,747
(11,244) -
(11,244) -
350,151 181,747
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2016 4 1 2017 3 31
2016 4 1 2017 3 31
2015 4 1 625,000 3,608,758 - 4,233,758
- 181,747 - 181,747
- 181,747 - 181,747
2016 3 31 625,000 3,790,505 - 4,415,505
2016 4 1 625,000 3,790,505 - 4,415,505
- 361,395 - 361,395
- - (11,244) (11,244)
- - (11,244) (11,244)
- 361,395 (11,244) 350,151
2017 3 31 625,000 4,151,900 (11,244) 4,765,656
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2016 4 1 2017 3 31
2016 4 1 2017 3 31
2016 4 1 2015 4 1
2017 3 31 2016 3 31
386,792 185,971
24,077 21,125
(35,479) (27,228)
375,390 179,868
- (8,241) (254,377)
h (4,114) (25,595)
- 82,467 (287,919)
- (65,614) -
379,888 (388,023)
(33,775) (575,000)
346,113 (963,023)
18,278 13,880
(7,968) (6,300)
(500,000) -
(489,690) 7,580
(143,577) (955,443)
4 1 3,164,831 4,120,274
3,021,254 3,164,831
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2016 4 1 2017 3 31

2017 22

#25-09 068809 6 Shenton Way, OUE Downtown 2,
25-09, Singapore 068809

2.1

FRS

2.2

2.3

2.4

FRS
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2016 4 1
FRS109
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FRS 109
FRS109
FS109 2016 4 1
@
FRS109
FVTPL
FVTPL
2016 1 1
FRS39
FRS109
2016 4 1
FRS109 2016 4 1
FRS39 FRS9
$ $ $
2016
1,332,161 - 1,332,161
3,164,831 - 3,164,831

- 180,145 180,145
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(b)
2016 4 1 FRS39 FRS109
2016 3 31
2017 3 31
©
2016 1 1 FRS109
FRS109
3

3.1
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3.3

2016 4 1 FRS39 FRS109
2016 3 31

12

3.4
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3.11

249/318



3.12

2016 4 1

2019 4 1

FRS115

FRS18

FRS116

FRS17

FRS17

FRS116
FRS17
FRS115

FRS115 FRS116
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2018 4 1 FRS115
FRS116
FRS115
FRS11
12
FRS116
FRS116
FRS 104
FRS127
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4
2015 4 1 26,860 2,616 56,497 85,973
- 6,300 - 6,300
2016 3 31 26,860 8,916 56,497 92,273
7,968 - - 7,968
2017 3 31 34,828 8,916 56,497 100,241
2015 4 1 4,477 508 8,067 13,052
8,953 873 11,299 21,125
2016 3 31 13,430 1,381 19,366 34,177
9,806 2,972 11,299 24,077
2017 3 31 23,236 4,353 30,665 58,254
2015 4 1 22,383 2,108 48,430 72,921
2016 3 31 13,430 7,535 37,131 58,096
2017 3 31 11,592 4,563 25,832 41,987
5
2017 3 31 2016 3 31
54,370 -
6
2017 3 31 2016 3 31
AGT 651,064 628,244
AGT 550,008 559,083
137,677 129,280
17,201 15,554
1,653 -
1,357,603 1,322,161
15
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2017 3 31 2017 3 31
974,415 1,150,951
2,546,839 2,013,880
3,521,254 3,164,831
(500,000) -
3,021,254 3,164,831
12 1.08 1.80 2016 3
500,000 2016 3
2017 3 31 2016 3 31
31 625,000 625,000
2016 3 31 2017 3 31
2015 4 1 (1 ¢
6,400 (839) 5,561 660 6,221
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10

11

12

2017 3 31 2016 3 31
46,945 28,614
100,096 -
87,100 126,521
28,471 25,010
262,612 180,145
15
2016 4 1 2015 4 1
2017 3 31 2016 3 31
3,155,705 2,884,932
2017 2016
us us
35,480 27,228
3,740 93
39,220 27,321
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13
2016 4 1 2015 4 1
2017 3 31 2016 3 31
1,924,673 1,785,165
49,744 33,856
138,388 92,263
2,112,805 1,911,284
3,808 3,808
14
2016 4 1 2015 4 1
2017 3 31 2016 3 31
24,737 5,063
660 (839)
25,397 4,224
386,792 185,971
17% 65,755 31,615
(2015 217%)
5,391 6,185
(14,309) (17,706)
(25,925) (10,807)
(5,515) (5.,063)
25,397 4,224
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2017 3 31

2016 3 31
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(2016 3

3,521,524
)

262,612 (262,612) (262,612) -
262,612 (262,612) (262,612) -
54,370

- (1,163,244) (1,163,244) -

- 1,217,614 1,217,614 -
54,370 54,370 54,370 -
316,981 (208,241) (208,241) -
180,145 (180, 145) (180, 145) -
180,145 (180, 145) (180, 145) -
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2017 3 31 2016 3 31
137,409 88,828
(57,677) -
79,732 88,828
2017 3 31
10 10
2017 3 31
(7,973) 7,973
10 10
2016 3 31
(8,883) 8,883
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2
2017 3 31
6 1,357,603 - 1,357,603
7 3,521,254 - 3,521,254
4,878,957 - 4,878,957
5 - 54,370 54,370
9 262,612 - 262,612
2016 3 31
6 1,332,161 - 1,332,161
7 3,164,831 - 3,164,831
4,496,992 - 4,496,992
9 180,145 - 180,145
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2017 3 31 2016 3 31
155,188 24,207
186,657 -
341,845 24,207

2016 6

2016 4 1 2015 4 1

2017 3 31 2016 3 31
966,221 909,030

2016 4 1 2015 4 1

2017 3 31 2016 3 31

3,155,705 2,884,932
81,629 -
22,605 28,975

142,608 119,376
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Statoment of financlal position
As at 31 March 2017

Note 207 2018
5 5

Mon-current assets
Plant and equipmen 4 41,087 58,006

41,987 58,096
Current assets
Fimancial derivatives 5 54,370 -
Trade and other receivables 3 1,357,603 1,332,161
Prepayments 81,335 Tr.221
Cash and cash eguivalents T 3,521,254 3,164,831

5014562 4,574,213

Total asset 5,056,549 4,632,300

Equity

Share capital B 625,000 625,000

Accumulated profits 4,151,800 3,700,505

Hedging reserve B (11,244) -

Total equity 4,785, 656 4415505

Non-current liabilities

Delerred tax liabilities 8 6,221 5,561
8,221 5561

Curreant llabllities

Trade and other payables 10 262,812 180,145
Current tax payable 22,060 31,098

284,672 211,243
Total llabllities 280,883 216,804
Tatal equity and llabilities 5,056,549 4,632,309

The accompanying noles form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statoment of profit or lose and othoer comprehansive Incoma
Year ended 31 March 2017

Note 207 2018
5 5

Revenue 1 3,185,705 2 884,932
Othar incomae 4,317 8,040
Siall cosis (2.112,804)  {1,911,284)
Professional lees {204,380) (291,471)
Human resource and administrative service fees (1B,672) {2B,975)
Investor relation expenses [37.527) {50,121)
Operating lease expanses {145,823) (148,021)
Travelling expenses {80,715) {77,493)
Other expenszes {202,530) {218,057}
Results from operating activities 347,572 158,650
Fimance incomae 12 39,220 27321
Prolit before tax 13 385,792 185,971
Tax expense 14 (25,387) (4,224)
Proefit for the year 361,395 181,747
Other cemprehensive loss thal may be reclassified

subsequently to prefit or loss
Changes in fair value of financial hedges {11,244} s
Other comprehensive Income for the year,

nat of tax ) 111, 244) =
Total comprehensive income for the year 350,151 181,747

The accompanying noles form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of changos In oquity
Year ended 31 March 2017

Share Accumulated  Hedging Total
capital profits resarve equity
5 5 kS 8

Al 1 Apnl 2015 625,000 3,608,758 a 4,233,758
Total comprahensive income

for the year
Prafit for the year - 181,747 - 181,747
Total comprehensive Income

for the year - 181,747 - 181,747
Al 31 March 2016 625,000 3.790.505 - 4,415,505
Al 1 April 2015 625,000 3.790,505 - 4,415,505
Total comprehensive income

for the year
Profit for the year = 361,305 - 361,395
Other comprahansive Income
Effective portion of changes in

fair value of financial hedges - - {11,244) (11.244)
Total other comprehansive

Income - - {11,244 {11,244)
Total comprahensive income

for the year - 361,395 {11,244} 350,151
AL 31 March 2017 625,000 4,151,900 {11,244 4,765,656

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statoment of cash flows
Year ended 31 March 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments lor;

Depreciation of plant and equipmant
Intarest incomae

Changes in working capital:
— trade and other receivables
— prepaymenis

~ trade and other payables

— financial derivatives

Cash generated from/[used in) operalions
Tax paid

Net cash flows from/{used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interesl recened

Purchase ol plant and equipment

Fixed depasit pledged with a financial institution

Nat cash from Investing activities

Wet increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalent at 1 April

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2017 2016
5 §
386,792 185,971
24,077 21,125
(35,479) (27.228)
375,390 179,868
(B,241) (254,377)
(4.114) (25,505)
B2 467 (287.919)
{B5,614) -
379,888 (388,023)
(33,775) (575.000)
346,113 (963,023)
18,278 13,880
(7.968) (6.300)
{500,000) -
1489.690) 7600
(143,577) (955.443)
3,164,831 4,120,274
3,021,254 3,164,831

The accompanying noles form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Motas te the financial statemaonts
These notes form an integral part of the financial statemenis.
The financial statemenis were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 Juna 2017
1 Domicile and activities
Accordia Goll Trust Management Ple. Ltd, (the Company) is incorporated in tha Republic of
Singapore. The address of the Company's registered office is at 6 Shenton Way,

QOUE Downtown 2, 25-08, Singapore 068808,

The principal activity of the Company is that of a trustee-manager for Accordia Golf Trust
(business trust).

The Company Is a joinl venlure balween Accardia Goll Co., Lid. and Dalwa Real Estale
Assel Management Co. Ltd.. Both companies are incorporated in Japan.

2 Basls of preparaillon
21  Statemont of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Singapore Financial
Reparting Standands (FRS).

2.2 Basls of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cosl basis excepl as
otherwise described in the accounting policies set out below.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Singapore dollar, which is the Company's
funclicnal currency.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation ol the linancial statements in conformily with FRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the applhcation of accounting
pelicies and the reported amounts of assets, llabilities, income and expenses. Aclual resulls
may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounling estimates are recognised in the pencd in which the estimate is revised and in
any fulure periods affected.

There are no signilicant areas of critical judgemenis in the application of accounting policies
that have significani eflect on the amount recognised In the linancial statements or
agsumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulling in a
matarial adjustmen within the next financial year,

Measurement of falr values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement
of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
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When measuring the fair value of an assot or Hakility, the Company uses markel observably
data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised info different levels in a fair value
hierarch based on the inpuls used in the valuations techniques as follows:

*  Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;
. Level 2: Inputs cther than quoled prices included in Level 1 that are chservable for

the asset or liability, either direclly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e.,
derived lrom prices); and

] Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are nol based on observable and
markel data (unobservable market data).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liahility fall into ditferent levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measuremenl is calegorized in its enfirety in the
same level of the lair value hierarchy as the lowes! leval input that is signiticant to the entire
measuremen! {with Level 3 being the lowest).

The Company recognises transfers between levals of the fair value hierarchy as of the end
ol the reporting pariod during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the
following notes:

] MWote 15 = Valuation of financial instruments
Changes in accounting pollclos

The accounling policies adopled are consistent with those of the previous linanclal year
excepl In the current financlal year, the Company has adopted all the new and revised
slandard which are effective for annual financial periods beginning on or alter 1 April 2016
and early adopted FRS 109 Finaneial Instriments which iz effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2018, The adoption of these standards did not have any eflect
on the financial perlermance or position of the Company except for FRS 109 Financial
Instruments as described below.

FRS 108 Financial Instruments

The main impacls ol the new slandard were on the classificalion and measuremenl of
financial assets, impairment of linancial assels and hedge accounting. The Group has
elected to apply the limited exemption in FRS 108 and has not restated comparative periods
in the year of initial application. The impact arising from FRS 109 adoption were ncluded
in the opening accumulated profits at the date of initial application, 1 April 2016, if any.

(a) Classilication and maasuramant

As a result of the early adoption of FRS 109, the Company has classified its linancial
assels as measured al amortised cost, fair value through profit or loas or fair value
through other comprehensive income, depending on Its business model fer managing
ihese financial assets and the asseis' contraclual cash flow characieristics. The
pravious classification at 'fair value through profit or lose’, ‘loans and recelvables’,
‘available-for-sale’ and financial liabilities at amorised cost’ was discontinued from
1 January 2016,
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Bazed on the now classification, the Company's financial assets thal woras previously
classified as loans and receivables under FRS 39 have beon classified as financial
assels al amortised cosl,

In accardance with the transitional provisions of FRS 108, the Group has not restated
prior periods, but has classified the financial assets held at 1 Apnl 2016 retrospectively
according to the business model and based on facts and circumstances under which
the assets were held at that dale as disclosed in the table below and there are no
lurther restalements,

The classification of financial liabilities remained unchanged for the Company.

The following table summarnses the classification and measurement changes for the
Company's linancial assets and linancial liabilities an initial application ol FRS 109

{1 April 2016}
Mow
measure ment
Original measuremant category and
category and carrylng carrylng amount
amount under FRS 39 under FRS 109
Loans and Carried at Amortised
receivables amortised cost cost
5 5 5
2016
Financial assels:
Trade and other receivables 1,332 181 - 1,332,181
Cash and cash equivalent 3,184,831 - 3,164 831
Financial llabilities:
Trade and other payables - 180,145 180,145

{b) Impairment of financial assels

On 1 April 2018, the Company adjusted the impairment of its linancial assels from the
incurrad loss model under FAS 39 1o the expecled credit [oss concept under FRS 109,
Until 31 March 2018, the Company estimated the incurred losses arising from the
laflure or inability of customers to make payments when due. These estimales were
assessed on an individual basis, laking into account the aging of customers’ balances,
specific credit circumstances and the Company's historical default experience. Under
the new approach, it is no longer necessary for a logs event to occur before an
impairment loss iz recognised. Impairment is made on expecied credil losses, which
are present valug of the cash shortialls over the expectad life of the financial assets,
As at 31 March 2017, the impairment made on expected credit losses did nod have any
impact on the statement of profit or loss,

{c) Hedge accounting
On early adoption of FRS 108, starting from 1 Janwary 2016, the Company adopted
cash llow hedge accounting model with respect to foreign cufrency risk on
management fee revenue. The model under FRS 109 faciliiates better alignment of

hedge accounting with risk management as it makes it possible to apply hedge
accounting lor specific risk components of nen-financial llems.
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Undar the new model, the Company applies the fair value option for its executory
forward exchange contracts. The forward exchange contracls accounted for as
derivatives are designaled as hedging Instruments wnder the cash flow hedge
accounting model, This designation is done in order o hedge the foreign currency risk
components embedded in the management fee revenue (being the hedged tems)

The new hedge accounting model primarily affected the amounts recognised for
management fee revenue and did not have a major impact on the statement of other
comprehensive income,

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies se! out below have been applied consistently to all periods
prazented in these linancial statements.

Feorelgn currency
Farelgn currency lransactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the funclional currency at exchange
rates at the average daily oxchange rate of the transacted month. Monetary assols and
liabilities denominated in forelgn currencles al the end of the reporling perod are
retranslated to the functional currency atl the exchange rale atl thal date. The foreign
currency gain or loss on monetary ltems Is the difference between amorised cost in the
functional currency at the beginning of the year adjusted for eflactive interest and
payments during the year, and the amorized cost in foreign currency translated at the
exchange rate al the end of the year.

Mon-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured At
tair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary itemas in a foreign currency that are measured
in terms of historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction, Foreign currency differences arising on refranslation are recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assels

Initfal recognitien and measuremeni

Financial assets are recognised when, only when the Company becomes a party 1o the
contractual provisions of the instruments. The Company determines the classification of its
financial assels al imtial recognition.

When financial assetls are recognised initially, they are measured al fair value, plus, in the
case of linancial assels nol al fair value through prolil or loss, direclly atltributable
transaction cosis.

Subzsequent measurgmeant

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model

for managing the asset and the coniractual cash flow characteristics of the asset. The
Company classiies debt instrumants into amortised cost.
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Amortised cost

Financial assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cosl,
Financial assels are measured at amonlised cost using the effective interest method, less
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the assets are
derecognised or impaired, and through amortisation process.

Amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalenis comprise cash and bank balances and fixed deposit placed with
financial institetions, that are subject to an insignilicant risk to changes in their fair valua.

Imipairarernt

The Company assesses on a lorward locking basis the expected credil losses ['ECL')
associated with s debl instrument assets carried al amortised cost. For trade receivables
only, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amoun! equal to the lletime expected
credit losses.

Derocagnition

A linancial assel is derecognised when the contractual right 1o receive cash llows from the
assel has expired. On derecognition of a financial assel in s entirety, the difference
betweon the carnying amaunt and the sum of the congideration received and any cumulative
gain of loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recagnised in profit
ar loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recagnifion and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a pary o
the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Company determines the

clagsification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of linancial
liabilities not at fair value through prolit or loss, directly altribulable transaction cosls.

Subsequent measurement

Aler initial recognition, other fimancial liabilities are subsequently measured al amorntsed
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
whan the liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

Derecognition

A financial liability s derecognised when the obligation under the liability Is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
game lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original ligbility and the recognition of a new liability and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts are recognised in profit or loss.
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Offzetting of financlal instrumonts

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsel and the net amount is presenied in the
balance sheels, whan and only when, there is a currently enforceable legal right to set off
the recognised amounts and there is an intenlion to setlle on a net basis, or to realise the
assels and settle the liabilifies simultanecusly.

Share capital
Ordinary sharas

Ordinary shares are classilied as eqguity. Incremental costs directly attributable o the issue
of ordinary shares are recognised as a deductian from equity, net of any tax effects.

Impalrment of financial assels

On 1 April 2018, the Company adjusted the impairment of I3 financial assels from the
incurred loss model under FRS 38 lo the expected credit loss model FRS 109, Until
31 March 2016, Company assesses whether objective evidence of impalrment exisis
indwedually for financial assels that are individually significant, or collectively lor financial
assols that are not individually significant, If the Company determines that no objective
evidence of Impairment exists for an individually assessed linancial assel, whether
significant or not, it includes the assel in a Company of linancial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them lor impairment. Asseis that are
individually assessed lor impairment, and for which an impairment logs is or continues to be
recognised, are nol included in a collective assessment of impairment. When the asset
becomes uncollectible, the carrying amount of impaired financial assel is reduced directly
or if an amount was charged to the allowance account, the amounts charged lo the
allowance account are written off against the carrying value of the financial asset,

To determine wheiher there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial
assels has been incurred, the Company considers faciors such as the probability of
insolvency or significant linancial difficulties of the debtor and defaull or significant delay in
payments.

Under the new approach, impairment is made on the expecied credit losses, which are the
present value of the cash shorilalls over the expected life of the financial assets.

Trade receivables

The Company measures the loss allowance for its trade recervables at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credil losses.

Other financial assels

Accordingly, other financial assets are classified as measured at amorised cosl less
expecled impairment losses. The Company's other linancial assels have contractual cash
llows that are solely principal, and interest and the business model's objective is to hold

these assets to collect contractual cash flows. Impairment allowances for other financial
assels are determined based on the 12-month expected credit loss model,
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Darlvative financial Instrumants, Including hedge aceounting

Derivative financial instruments include forward currency contracts, These are used 1o
manage the Company's exposure to risks associated with Toreign currency.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract i3 entered inlo and are subsequently remeasured at fair value,
Drerivative financial instruments are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative,

The fair value of lorward currency cantracts and interest rate derivatives are calculated by
reference to current forward exchange rates and interest rates respeclively for contracts
with similar maturity profiles.

Hedge accounting

The Company apphes hedge accounting far certain hedging relationships which qualify for
hedge accounting. For the purpose of hedge accounling, hedges are classified as cash llow
hedges when hedging exposure to varlabilily In cash llows that Is either atirlbutable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised assel or hability or a highly probable forecast
tranzaction or the loreign currency risk in an unrecognised flirm commitment.

Cash flow hedges

For each cash flow hedge relationship, the effective part of any gain or loss on the
derivalive financial instrument s recognised directly in other comprehensive income,
Amounis recognised as other comprehensive inceme are transferred to profit or loss when
the hedged transaction affects profit or loss. The inelfective part of any gain or loss is
recognised immediately in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Accounts at the time hedge
effecliveness is tested.

When a cash flow hedge is discontinued, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income will remain in tha cash flow hedge reserve until the future
cash flows cceur. |f the hedged future cash flows no longer expected ta accur, the nat
cumulative gain or loss is immediately reclassilied to profit or loss.

Plant and equipment

Items of plant and equipment are measurad al cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulaled impairment losses.

Cost includes expendilure that s directly altribulable te the acguisition of the assel
Purchased soitware that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is
capialised as parl of that equipment.

When parls of an item of plant and equipment have different useful lves, they are
accounted for as separate tems (major companents) of plant and equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of plant and equipment is determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of plant and equipment, and Is
recognised net within other expenses in prodit or loss,
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Subsogquent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of plant and eguipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item il it is probable that the fulure economic benefits embodied
within the companent will flow to the Company, and i1 cost can be measured reliably, The
carrying amount of the replaced compeonent is derecognised. The costs of the day-lo-day
servicing of plant and equipmant are recognised in profil or loss as incurred,

Depreciation
Deprecialion is based on the cost of an asest less its residual value. Significant componenis
of individual assets are assessed and if a component has a useful life that is differant from

the remainder of that asset, that component is depreciated separataly.

Depreciation is recognised as an expense in pralit or loss on a straight=line basis over the
eslimaled uselul lives of each cemponent ef an itam of plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised lrom the date thal the plant and equipment are installed and are
ready for use.

The estimated uselul lives for the current and comparative years are as lollows:

Computers = 3 years
Ofice eguipmenl - 3 years
Furniture and litlings - & years

Depreciation methods, uselul lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each
reporting pericd and adjusted If appropriate.

Impalrmant
MNan-financial assets

The carrying amaunts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, than the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized
if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generafing unit (CGU) exceeds ils
eslimaled recoverable amounl,

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGL is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in wse, the estimated luture cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-lax discoun! rate that reflects current market
assessments of the lime value of money and the risks specilic 1o the assal or GGU. For the
purpase of impairmeont testing, assats that cannot ba lested Individually are grouped
together into the smallest group of assels thal generates cash inllows from conlinuing use
that are largely Independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss, Impairment losses recognised in respect
of CGUs are allocated to reduce the carrying ameunis of the other assets in the CGU (group
of CGLIg) onm a pro rata basis.
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Impairment losses recognised in prior pericds are assessod at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change In the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only 1o the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not
exceed the camying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amartisation, it no impairment loss had been recognized.

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-emplayment benefit plan under which an entity pays
fixed contributions info a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to
pay lurther amounts. Obligations for eontributions to dalined conlrbution pension plans are
recognised as an employes benelil expense in prolit or boss in the periods duning which
related services are rendered by employees.

Shart-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basks and are
exponsed as the related service is provided. A lability s recognised for the amount
expected 1o be pald under short-teem cash bonus H the Company has a present legal oF
conslructive obligalion to pay this amounl as a result of past service provided by the
employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Revenue recognition

Management fee

Management fee iz derived from the management of the business trust and comprises base
fee and performance fee which are respectively determined based on the value of the tatal
assets of the business trust on a consolidated basis, and the adjusted net operating income
of the investmenis of business trust. Management lee is recognised on an accrual basis,
Acquisitien, divestment and ene-time Inilial sefup fees

Acquisition and divesimen! fees relate to fees earned in relation to the acquisition and
divestmen! of assels by business trust. The acquisition and divestmen! lees are determined

based on the value of the assets acquired and divested and are recognised when the
sorvices have been rendered.

One-lime Initial setup fee relates 1o acquisition Tee for work done in connection with the
acquisitien of the Initlal portfolio by business trust. The fee iz recognised when the services
have been rendered.

Firance Income

Finance Income comprises interest Income on deposits placed with banks. Interest income
is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest method,

Foreign currency gains and losaes on financial assets and financial liabilities are reported
on a net basis as either linance income or finance cost depending on whether foreign
currency movemenis are in a net gain or net loss position,
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3.10 Tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss excepl ta the extent that it relates 1o items recognised directly
in equity or in other comprehensive income,

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substanfively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. The amount of the curmrent tax
payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amoun expected 1o be paid or received
that reflects uncerainly relaled lo income taxes, il any.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and llabilithes for linancial reporting purposes and the amaounts used lor
taxabion purposes. Delerred tax is not recognised for temporary differences on the inibal
recegnition of assets or llabilities In a transaction that is nol a business combination and
that affects naither accounling nor taxable profits or loss.

Deferred tax s measured al the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
difterences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date,

Delerred tax assets and habilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax labilittes and assels and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authorily
on the same taxable enlity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to getlle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assels and liabilties will be realised
simultaneously,

A deferred tax assel is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible
temporary diterences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be ufilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting dale and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related lax
benefit will be realised.

In detarmining the amount of current and delerred tax, the Company takes into account the
impact of uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. The
Company believes thal ils accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open lax years
based on ils assessment of many lactors including interpretlations of fax law and prior
expenence. This assessment relies on estimalas and assumplions and may involve a series
of judgements about fulure evenis. New information may become avallable that causes the
Company 1o change its judgement regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilites. Such
changes (o tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the penod that such a determination i
made.

3.41 Lease payments
Paymems made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straighl-line

basis over the term of the lease. Lease Incenlives received are recognised in profit or loss
ag an integral parl of the total lease payments made.
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3.12 Now standards and Interpretations not adoptod

A number of new slandards, amendments to standards and interpretations are eflective for
annual periods beginning after 1 April 2016 and earlier application is permitted; howewver,
the Company has not early applied the following new or amended standards in preparing
these statements.

For those new standards and amendments 1o standards that are expected lo have an eflect
on the financial stalements of the Company in future financial pericds, the Company is
assessing the transition options and the potential impact on its financial statements, and
implamentations of these standards.

The new standards include, among cthers, FRS 115 Hevenue from Confracis with
Cuslomars which is mandatory for the adoplion by the Company on 1 April 2018 and FRS
116 Leases which is mandatory for adoption by the Company on 1 April 2019,

*  FAS 115 establishes a comprehensive framework for defermining whether, how much
and when revenude is recognised. It also inlroduces new cosl guidance which requires
cerlain costs of abtaining and fullilling contracts 1o be recognised as separate assels
when specilied criteria are mat. When ellective, FRS 115 replaces exisling revenue
recognition guidance, including FRS 18 Revenue and FRS 11 Censtruchion Contracts.

] FRS 118 eliminates the lesses's classification of leases as either operating leases or
finance leases and introduces a single lessee accounting model, Applying the new
model, a lesses is required to recognise right-cf-use (ROU) assets and lease liabilities
for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
values, FRS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requiremsnts in
FRS 17 Leases, Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating
leases or finance leases, and to account for these fwo types of leases using the FRS
17 operating lease and finance lease accounting models respectively. However, FRS
116 requires more extensive disclosures to be provided by a lessor, When effective,
FRS 116 replaces existing lease accounting guidance, including FRS 17, INT FRS 104
Delermining whether an Arrangemen! confains a Lease, INT FRS 15 Operafing
Leases — Incentives, and INT FRS 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

As FRS 115 and FAS 116, when effeclive, will change the existing accounting standards
and guidance applied by the Company in accounting lor revenue and beases, these
slandards are expecled 1o be ralevant to the Company. The management is currently
evalualing the patential impact on its financial statements and to implement the standards,
Tha Company does not plan to adopt these standards early.

4 Plant and equipment

Office Furniture
Computers equipment and fittings Total
5 s 5 5

Cost

Al 1 April 2015 26,860 2.616 56,497 85,973
Additicns - B.300 - 6,300
Al 31 March 2016 26,860 B.916 56,497 92.273
Additions 7.968 = - 7.968
At 31 March 2017 34,828 B.916 56,947 100,241
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Office Furnitura
Computers equipment and fittings Total
$ s ] 5
Accumulated depreciation
AL April 2015 4,477 508 8.067 13.052
Depreciation charge for the year 8,853 873 11.299 21.125
Al 31 March 2016 13,430 1,381 19,366 34077
Deprecialion charge for the year 8,808 2,972 11,269 24,077
Al 31 March 2017 23,236 4,353 30,665 58.254
Carrylng amounts
ALY Aprll 2015 22,383 2,108 48,430 72,921
Al 31 March 2016 13,430 7,535 37,131 58,008
Al 31 March 2017 11,582 4,563 25,832 41,987
Financlal derivatives
207 2016
5 5
Forward axchange contracts used lor hedging 54,370 -

The Company uses forward exchange coniracts to hedge its revenue which were computed
based on Japanage Yen.

Trade and other receivables

207 2016
L $
Amount due from Accordia Golf Trust 851,064 628,244
Accrued revenue from Accordia Golf Trust 550,008 559,083
Deposits 137 677 126,280
Accrued interast incoma 17,201 15,554
Othars 1,653 -
1,357,803 1,332,181

The Company’s exposure to credit risk related to its trade and other receivables is disclosed
in note 15.
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Cash and cash sguivalants

2017 2016
3 5

Cash and bank balances 974415 1,150,951
Fixed deposits placed with financial Institutions 2.546,839 E_.l?_!a,E!EID_
Cash and cash equivalents in the statemant of

financial position 3,521,254 3,164,831
Fixed deposits pledged with a finamcial institution {500,000) -
Cash and cash equivalents in the statemant of cash

flows 3,021,254 3,164,831

The fixed deposits placed with linancial institulions mature within the next 12 manths and
bear interest rates of 1.08% to 1.80% (2016: 1.45% to 1.80%) per annum. The lxed deposit
of 5500,000 {2016: 5Nil} is pledged with a linancial institution for foreign exchange lorward
lacility,

Share eapital

2017 2016
No. of shares  No. of sharaes

Issued and {ully paid ordinary shares,
with no par value:

Al 1 April and 31 Mareh 625,000 625,000

The holders of ordinary shares are enlitled to receive dividends as declared from time 1o
time, and are entitled to one vote per share at mestings of the Company. All shares rank
equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.

Hedging reserve

Hedging reserve records the poricn of the fair value changes on financial derivatives that
were designated as hedging instruments which were determined to be effective hedges.

Deterred tax liabilities

Movement in defarred tax labilities of the Company during the year is as loflows:

Recognised Recognised
In profit In profit
At or loss At or loss At
1/4/2015 (mote 14)  31/3/2016  (note 14) 31372017
g 5 5 4 %
Plant and equipment 6,400 {83a) 5,561 8680 6.221
FS17
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2016
5

28,614
126,521
25,010

2017
5
Trade payables 46,945
Amount due to related corparations (trade) 100,096
Accrued aperating expenses a7.100
Goods and Services Tax payable 28.471
262,612

180,145

The Company's exposure to liguidity risk related to its trade and other payables s disclosed

2016

2,884,932

2016

27.228

in note: 15.
Revenue
207
§
Managemen! les 3,165,705
Finance Income
2017
s
Recognlsed In profit or loss
Imterest income on cash and cash equivalenis,
representing finance income 35,480
Met exchange gain 3740
39,220

27,321

Profit before tax

The following items have been included in arriving at profit befars tax:

2016
]

1,785,165
33.856
92,263

1,911,284

2017
&
Salaries and bonuses 1,824 673
Contributions to defined contribution plans 40,744
Other personnel expenses 138,388
2,112,805
Government grant = Wage Credit Scheme 3,808

3,803
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Tax oxXpenso

2017 2016

5 5

Current lax expense
Current year 24.737 5,063
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of lemporary differences BE0 (8348}
Total tax expense 25,387 4224
Reconciltation of effective iax rale
Profit before tax 386,792 185,971
Tax calculated using Singapore lax rate of 17%

{2016: 17%) 65,755 31,615
Mon-deductible expenses 5.391 B,185
Tax exempt income {14.3009) {17, 706)
Tax incentive (25.025) (10,807)
Tax rebate (5.515) {5,063)

25,397 4,224

Financial Instruments

Qverview

Tha Company has exposure to the following nsks from its use of financial instruments:

*  credil risk

. liquidity risk

*  markel risk

This note presents information about the Company’'s exposure to each of the above risks,
the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and
the Company’s managemen! of capital.

Risk managemanl framework

The Board of Directors has averall responsibllity fer the establishment and oversight ol the
Company's risk management framawork.,

The Company's risk managemenl policles are established to identily and analyse the risks
faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and 10 monitor risks and
adherence to limils, Risk managemen! policies and systems are reviewed regularly 1o
reflect ehanges In marketl conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, threugh
its traiming and managemaent standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.
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Cradit risk

Cradit risk is the risk of financial loss 10 the Company if a cusiomer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Company's receivables from customers.

At the reporting date, the Company's primary exposure fo credit risk arises through its
receivables from a related corporation. The carying amounts of financial assets in the
stalement of linancial positicn represent the Company's maximum exposure o credii risk,

Impairment losses

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired mainly arise from creditworthy
debtors with good payment record with the Company. The Company believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect ol receivables nol pasi due. As at the
reporting dale, there are no receivables pasi due.

Cash and cash equivalenis

The Company held cash and cash equivalenls of $3,521,524 (2016: $3,164,831) as al
31 Mareh 2017, which represents ils maximum credil exposure on these assels. The cash
and cash equivalens are held with bank and financial institutions which are regulated.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another linancial
asgel,

In the management of liquidity risks, the Company monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance the Company's
operaticns and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flow.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities excluding the impact of
netting agreements:

Cash flows
Carrying Contractual Within Within
amount cash flows 1year 1to5 years
5 5 5 -
31 March 2017
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Trade and othar payables 262,612 (262,612) (262612 -

262,612 (262.612) (262.512) -

Derivative financlal instruments
Forward exchange confracls used

tor hedging {gross-settled): 54,370
- Oulliow - [1,183,244) (1,183.234) -
— Inflow - 1,217.614 1,217,614 -
54,370 54,370 54,370 -

316,981 (208,241)  (208.241) -
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Cash flows

Carrying Contractual  Within Within
amount  cash flows 1year 1105 years

3 § 5 5
31 March 2016
Nen-derivative financial
llabilities
Trade amd other payables 180,145 (180,145)  (180,145) -

180,145  (180,145)  (180,145) -

The disclosure shows net cash flow amounts for derivatives that are cash settled and gross
cash inflow and outflow amounts for derivatives that have simultanecus grose cash
seftlemant e.g, forward exchange confracts,

Markel risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in markel prices, such as foreign exchange rates and
interest rates will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is 1o manage and control markel risk
exposiures within aceaplable parameters, while optimising the relurn.

Forelgn currency risk

The Company is exposed lo currency risk on purchases and cash balances thal are
denominaied in Japanese yen {JPY).

The Company uses derivative financial instruments 1o hedge i1s currency risk.

Management reviews periodically 1o ensure that the nel exposure is kept al an acceplable
level,

The Company's exposure to fareign currency risk is as lollows:

2017 2016
JPY JPY
§ 5
Cash and cash equivalenls 137,400 88,828
Trade and other payables (57.677) -
Met exposure 78,732 88,628

Sensitivity analysis

A strengthening of the SGD against the JPY at 31 March 2017 would have increased{decreased)
prodit or lass by the amoums shown below. This analysis = based on foreign currency exchange
rate variances that the Company considered to be reasenably possible al the end ol the reporing
period, Tho analysis assumes that all ether varables, in paicular interest rates, remain constant
and ignores any impact of lorecasted purchases.
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Profit or loss

10% 10%
strengthening weakening
5 L
31 March 2017
JPY (7.973) 7,073
31 March 2016
JPY (B.8B3) B.BB3

Capital management

The Board's policy is to maintain a sound capital position to support its business growth and
strategle investments,

There were no changes in the Company’s approach o capital management during the year,
The Company ks nol subject lo externally Imposed capital requirements.

Accouniing classifications and falr values

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities, which are not measurad at fair value
as shown in the statement of financial position, are as fellows. Information en fair value of
financial assets and financial liabilities are not disclosed when their carmying amounts are
reasonable approximation of their fair values,

The carrying amounis of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year
{including cash and cash equivalenis, trade receivables and olher payables) approximate
their fair values because of the shorl pericd to malurity.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts (Level 2 {air values) used lor hedging is based
on markel comparison technique. The lair value are based on broker quotes. Similar
contracts are trade in an active market and the guoles rellect the aclual transaclions in
similar instrument.

Falr value
through other Total
Amortised comprehensive carrying
Note cosl income amounl
5 5 -1
31 March 2017
Financial assels nol
measured al fair value
Trade amd other receivables 5] 1,357,603 - 1,357,603
Cash and cash equivalents 7 3,521,254 = 3,521,254
4 878,957 - 4,878,957
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Financial assols measured
al fair value

Forward exchange contracts
used for hedging

Financial liabilities not
measured al fair value

Trade and other payables

31 March 2016

Financial assels nol
measured at fair value

Trade and other recelvables

Cash and cash equivalens

Financlal liabilities not
measured at fair value

Trade and other payables

Operating lease
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through other Total
Amertlsed comprehensive  carrying
Note cost income amount
1 3 §

5 - 54,370 54,370
2] 262,612 - 262,612
1,332,181 - 1,332,181
3,184,831 - 3,164,831
4,496,982 a 4,496,992

8 180,145 - 180,145

Non-cancellable operating lease rental is payable to a related company as follows:

Within one year
Between one and five years

2017 2016
5 §
155,168 24,207
186,657 -
341,845 24,207

The Company leases its office under operating lease with a related company. In June 20186,
the Company has renewed the lease for a period of three years with the related company.
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Ralated parties

In addition 1o the information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the following
transactions teok place between the Company and related parties on terms agreed between
the parties:

Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel of the Company are those persons having authority and
responsibility lor planning, directing and controliing the activities of the Company, directly

or indirectly. The directors of the Company are considered as key management persannel,

The key management personnel compensation, representing compensation to directors of
the Company, lof tha year 15 as lollows:

2017 2016
-] 5
Salaries and other shori-term employee benefits 066,221 409,030

Other related parly fransactions

The following signilicant transaction between the Company and its related parties ook
place during the year on terms agreed between the parties:

2017 2016
5 5

Accordla Golf Trust

Managemenl fes 3,155,705 2,884, 932
Disbursement of expenses 81,629 =
Related corporalions

Human resource and adminisiralive service rendered 22,805 28,975
Rental expense 142,608 119,376
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2(k),3(b) 10

2018 3 31 AGT
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146,033 83%

2018 3 1,720
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AGT

Mr. Yeow Chee Keong

LLP

2018 6 25
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF ACCORDIA GOLF TRUST
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Accordia Golf Trust (*“AGT”) and
its subsidiary (“the Group”) and the statement of financial position of AGT are properly drawn up in
accordance with the provisions of the Business Trusts Act, Chapter 31A of Singapore (the “Act”) and
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) so as to give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group and the financial position of AGT as at 31 March 2018 and of
the consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of
the Group for the financial year ended on that date.

What we have audited

The financial statements of AGT and the Group comprise:
the statements of financial position of the Group and AGT as at 31 March 2018;
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the Group for the
year then ended;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the year then ended; and
the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority
Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ACRA Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF ACCORDIA GOLF TRUST

(continued)
Our Audit Approach

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement
in the accompanying financial statements. In particular, we considered where the Trustee-Manager
made subjective judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved
making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits,
we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including among other matters
consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due
to fraud.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2018. These matters were

addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF ACCORDIA GOLF TRUST

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment assessment of Property,
Plant and Equipment (Note 10)

Refer to Note 2(k), Note 3(b) and Note
10 to the financial statements

As at 31 March 2018, the Group
operates 89 golf courses in Japan
classified as property, plant and
equipment with a carrying value of
JPY 146,033 million, representing
83% of total assets. For the financial
year ended 31 March 2018, an
impairment loss of JPY 1,720 million
was recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss And Other
Comprehensive Income.

The assessment of impairment of golf
courses is significant to our audit due
to:

The carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment that
contribute significantly to the
Group'’s total assets; and

The amount of the Trustee-
Manager's judgement involved in
assessing the recoverable
amounts of the golf courses. This
includes judgement about the
future cash flows generated from
the golf courses, as well as
judgements about discount rates
applied in the discounted cash
flow analysis.

Our audit procedures focused on the
reasonableness of the inputs applied in determining
the recoverable amounts of the golf courses. The
audit procedures were performed with the support
from our valuation specialist.

Our audit procedures included the following:

obtained an understanding of the Trustee-
Manager's processes for impairment
assessment;

assessed the competency, independence and
integrity of the professional valuers engaged by
the Group;

involved our valuation specialists to assess the
appropriateness of the valuation techniques and
the reasonableness of the inputs such as
discount rates used by the external valuers in
determining the recoverable amounts of the golf
courses;

tested the integrity of information, including
financial information provided to the professional
valuers;

reviewed the Trustee-Manager's sensitivity
analysis on the inputs utilised as part of the
impairment assessment; and

assessed the Trustee-Manager's main future
cash flow inputs and corroborated them by
comparing them to internal forecasts and
strategic plans that were approved by senior
management, and compared these inputs
against historical data.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the
underlying inputs applied to be reasonable.

We have also assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures relating to the judgements made and
found the disclosures in the financial statements to
be appropriate.
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(continued)
Other Information

The Trustee-Manager is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
sections of the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Trustee-Manager and Directors for the Financial Statements

The Trustee-Manager is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with the provisions of the Act and IFRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system
of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they
are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain
accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustee-Manager is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustee-Manager either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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(continued)
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Trustee-Manager.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Trustee-Manager's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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(continued)
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Trustee-Manager
on behalf of AGT have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Yeow Chee Keong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore, 25 June 2018

()
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Independent auditors report

Members of the Company
Accordia Golf Trust Management Pte. Ltd.

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Accordia Golf Trust Management Pte. Ltd. (‘the Company’), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018, the statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages FS1 to FS24.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (‘the Act’) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (‘' FRSS) so asto give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2018 and of the financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (' SSAS). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the ‘Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (*
ACRA Code’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information contained in the annual report. Other information is defined as
all information in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditors report thereon.

We have obtained all other information prior to the date of this auditors report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management and Directors for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair financia statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Directors responsihilities include overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We a so:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s interna controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controls that we identify during our
audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been properly
kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

KPMGLLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore
25 June 2018

()
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Independent auditors report

Members of the Company
Accordia Golf Trust Management Pte. Ltd.

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financia statements of Accordia Golf Trust Management Pte. Ltd. (‘the Company’), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financia statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages FS1 to
FS23.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (‘the Act’) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (‘FRSS) so asto give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2017 and of the financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (‘ SSAS). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the ‘Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (*
ACRA Code') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information contained in the annual report. Other information is defined as
al information in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditors report thereon.

We have obtained all other information prior to the date of this auditors report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsihilities of management and directors for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
aternative but to do so.

The Directors responsibilities include overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentiona
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal controls.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controls that we identify during our
audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been properly
kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

KPMGLLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore
22 June 2017

()
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